
1 
 

 

  
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Casitas Board Room 
1055 Ventura Ave. 

Oak View, CA 93022 
November 14, 2018 @ 3:00 P.M. 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 
6. Consent Agenda. 
 

a. Minutes of the October 24, 2018 Board Meeting. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 

7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 10/18/18 - 
11/07/18. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report. 
 
8. Resolution scheduling a public hearing for December 12, 2018 for the 

consideration of declaring Stage 4 Water Supply Conditions at Lake 
Casitas. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 



2 
 

 
9. Recommend approval of a Water Service Agreement with Meiners Oaks 

Water District. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Authorize the Request for Qualifications for Electrical Contractors for 

Rincon Pump Plant Electrical Upgrade project. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Presentation on the Ojai Water System Condition-Based Assessment and 

Water Master Plan. 
 
12. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to sign Professional 

Services Agreement with WSC, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of 
$89,000 for the Casitas Water System Hydraulic Model. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
13. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to sign Professional 

Services Agreement with Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. for On-Call 
Hydrogeologic Consulting Services. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
14. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Monthly Status Report for October, 2018. 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
c. Recreation Committee Minutes 
d. Executive Committee Minutes. 
e. Recreation Area Reports for September and October 2018. 
f. Monthly Engineering Status Report. 
g. Water Consumption Report. 
h. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
i. Investment Report. 

 
15. Adjournment. 
 
If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please 
notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 
and 54954.2(a)). 



1 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
October 24, 2018 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 24, 2018 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. President Word led the group in the 
flag salute.  

  
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Directors Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks and Word were present.  Also present 
were Mike Flood, Interim General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, 
and Attorney John Mathews.  There were three staff members and eleven 
members of the public in attendance 
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Robert Meyer suggested including current water security project status on 
the agenda.  Show for the public benefit what is going on with the projects or 
items even if nothing happened. It helps the public be abreast of what is going on 
and feel that you are on top of things.   
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 

Mr. Flood informed the board of distribution system upgrades to the La 
Conchita area in front of a paving project. Staff worked in concert with contractor 
to get a lot of the project finished. The project is progressing and impact on 
customers minimized.   
 

Tours will be held tomorrow and Saturday at 9:00.  Another tour is 
scheduled for November 17th.  A lot of these facilities have not been available for 
the public to see. 
 

Additionally, we are recording this meeting.  At this point we do not have 
the ability to stream the meeting but are working with Granicus next week.  A 
recording of the meeting will be uploaded and we will have a link on the web 
page. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 

Director Hicks asked about training on personnel files.  Mr. Flood 
responded that we can talk about that after the meeting. 
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
  

Director Baggerly met in Santa Barbara with Jordan Kear to begin work on 
the conjunctive use agreement between Casitas and OBGMA. When we have a 
draft prepared we will bring it to Casitas.  We hope to have something done 
before the end of the year.  We need to develop the outline of policy and 
implementation and agreement between Casitas and OBGMA. 
 

Director Bergen reported on the Upper Ventura River Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency meeting explaining that they are setting up the agency and 
looking at staffing needs.  A grant with the Department of Water Resources is 
coming down to the final agreements.  Fortunately through negotiated they have 
changed the match from 50% to 25%.  The grant plays a large part on the money 
you have to spend up front.  Working to get the monitoring under way that is 
needed for the plan.   
 
6. Consent Agenda.       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the October 10, 2018 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Vista Ford in the amount 

of $33,757.88 for the purchase of a F250 truck. 
c. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Winner Chevrolet in the 

amount of $24,365.23 for the purchase of a Colorado truck. 
d. Resolution to award the Robles Diversion Canal Maintenance Project 

to Southwest General Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $97,250 and 
adopt the Notice of Exemption. 

e. Recommend approval of a purchase order to AAA Awnings, Inc. in the 
amount of $23,080 to construct a removable awning cover over the 
San Antonio Tank MCC panel. 

f. Resolution cancelling the December 26, 2018 Board Meeting. 
 

 
President Word mentioned item the word eve is to be deleted from item f.   
  
The consent agenda with the above modification was offered by Director 

Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
   



3 
 

 Resolution is numbered 18-26. 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 10/04/18 - 

10/17/18.        APPROVED 
 
 

Director Kaiser asked about the tractor rental and asked if it might make 
more sense to purchase a tractor. Mr. Flood explained that this will be evaluated 
and be part of the budget discussions as we look at the new budget year. 
 

Director Kaiser asked about payment to Pueblo Water Resources Inc. and 
what was the receivable?  Mr. Flood explained this is the water security project 
on the optimization of our well field.  We did get a draft report from them. 
 

Director Hicks questioned the flex storage and City of Ventura. Mf. Collin 
explained this is flexible storage where we are in contract with Castaic Lake.  The 
State Water Project contract that allows water to be stored at Castaic so we bill 
them and then they pay us and we share that with the City and United.  It is done 
annually until 2035. 
 
 The Accounts Payable report was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by 
Director Kaiser and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
8. Request of William Funk to reverse the allocation penalty. Denied 
 
 Ms. Collin explained that Mr. Funk wrote a letter requesting that we 
reverse his allocation penalty.  He had a leak and he requested that it be 
considered for reversal. The Finance committee reviewed it and gave a 
recommendation to deny it.   
 
 Director Baggerly offered to support the Finance Committee finding and 
deny the request, this was seconded by Director Bergen and passed by the 
following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
9. Update from Rincon Strategies regarding the Public Relations Action Plan. 
 

Chris Collier provided an update on the Public Relations Action Plan and 
spoke about the Tours and the Ag Stakeholders meeting that was well attended.  
He showed a video of Mr. Flood that will be available on Facebook and the 
website.  The how the diversion works script is currently being reviewed and we 
will get some videos and pictures and my goal is to get that story out to the public 



4 
 

in the next month.  I met with Bob Daddi with the Ojai Valley News on getting 
some more column inches and am meeting with Engineering on all the projects 
being done around the district to show what the district is doing.  Director Kaiser 
asked if there could be a drone overfly of the lake as well as the diversion.  
President Word asked about the work on the website and Mr. Flood explained 
that was a separate contract. 
 

President Word suggested establishing an ad hoc committee to assist with 
the monitoring and review of the plans that unfold and find ways to get the 
message across.  He asked for another board member to join me to meet a 
couple of times with Chris to keep on track and keep moving.  Director Kaiser 
offered to do so.  President Word said redoing the website is one thing to be 
worked on and Mr. Flood said there is an internal committee that is working on 
that.  The PR committee could look at the content to make sure the board can 
weave in what they are intent on. 
 
10. Presentation by Fisheries Biologist Scott Lewis on the Operation of Robles 

Diversion Facility in the Biological Opinion. 
 

Scott Lewis provided an overview of the issues related to the Endangered 
Species Act and the Biologic Opinion for the operation at Robles including the 
critical drought protection measures.   
 
11. Discussion regarding funding the Upper Ventura River Groundwater 

Agency in the amount of $50,000 and possible expectation of 
reimbursement.       APPROVED 

 
  Director Bergen discussed the process of starting the new agency and the 

member agencies contributions of $50,000 for three years.  The GSA hired a 
consultant and is developing their fee structure.  Fees should be in place in early 
2019 at that point Casitas’ amount would be for their one small well in the basin.  
President Word added once fees start being collected any other seed money 
would be considered a loan.  Director Bergen added we wanted to get 
clarification from the member agencies that they would not be expecting 
reimbursement so that the policy would be that when the fees are in place any 
contribution after that point would be a loan and would be charged interest.  
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser the 
above was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
12. Recommend approval of a Memorandum of Agreement with Ojai Land 

Conservancy regarding the Rice Road Bridge at the Robles Canal. 
          APPROVED 



5 
 

 
  The above recommendation was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 

Director Baggerly and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 
 
13. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to sign Task Orders with 

Cannon Corporation for De La Garrigue Bridge and Rice Bridge 
Replacement Projects.      APPROVED 

 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser the 

above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
14. Discussion regarding the ability to create a foundation to be able to 

receive private non-binding funds for Casitas Water Security Projects. 
 
   
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser, the 
board directed District Counsel to start developing a skelton of a foundation we 
can use to accept private funds.  This was approved by the following roll call 
vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
15. Discussion regarding drafting a letter to Senators Feinstein and Harris 

requesting intervention with the USFS to assist with our VerBo and HoBo 
projects and the obtaining of the FS299 permit for environmental 
documentation needed for this water shortage emergency. 

           
 Direction was provided to staff. 
 
 
 
16. Discussion regarding drafting a letter to Michael P. Jackson, U.S. Bureau 

of Reclamation requesting his assistance with the USFS to assist with our 
VerBo and HoBo projects and obtaining the FS299 permit for 
environmental documentation needed for this water shortage emergency. 

 
 Direction was provided to staff. 
 



6 
 

17. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Monthly Status Report for September, 2018. 
b. Executive Committee Minutes. 
c. Quagga Committee Minutes. 
d. Finance Committee Minutes. 
e. Water Consumption Report. 
f. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
g. Investment Report. 

 
President Word mentioned that on item a, as of yesterday we were at 

31%.  I know we have a lot of people that are conserving water to stage 5 levels 
but there are some that are not.  
 
 The information items were offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 
Director Bergen and approved for filing by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
18. Adjournment. 
 
 President Word adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Mary Bergen, Secretary 

























































1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Michael L. Flood, Interim General Manager 

RE: Scheduling a Public Hearing to Consider Declaring a Stage 4 Water 
Supply Condition at Lake Casitas 

Date:   November 9, 2018 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Board of Directors consider setting a hearing for the December 12, 2018 Board Meeting to 
consider the adoption of a resolution declaring that a Stage 4 Water Supply Condition exists 
for the Lake Casitas water supply. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On April 27, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted a resolution declaring that a Stage 3 water 
supply condition existed for the Lake Casitas water supply. Three categories of specific 
actions were identified to be part of the declaration: 
 
Category 1: Communication and Outreach – this included intensification of public outreach 
focused on alerting the public to the existence of a Stage 3 water supply condition and that 
mandatory water use reductions were in place. Budget development to support outreach 
efforts was also part of this category. 
 
Category 2: New Service Connections & Allocations - Direction to staff to bring back a 
recommendation on either a moratorium or controlled issuance of new water service 
connections and allocations. 
 
Category 3: Specific Actions to Support Conservation – This involved a list of specific actions 
involving allocation adjustments, landscape irrigation limitations and conservation penalties. 
 
Since the adoption of the Stage 3 resolution, the level in Lake Casitas saw a minor recovery 
in early 2017 but a continued decline since that time. As of early November 2018, the level at 
Lake Casitas is nearing the 30% full threshold which is one criteria within the Casitas MWD 
Water Efficiency Allocation Program (Section 5.4, Table 5) that the Board of Directors can 
consider to declare a Stage 4 water supply condition.  



2 

 

 
 
DISCUSSSION: 
 
The Casitas MWD Water Efficiency Allocation Program provides the Board of Directors full 
discretion to determine what water supply condition Stage to declare in response to a drought 
emergency, which is contained primarily in Section 5.4. This includes (but is not limited to) 
the water level of Lake Casitas, the measured response to the call for conservation, and 
changes to water resource conditions.  
 
State of California Water Code Section 375 indicates that a public hearing upon notice is 
required for this type of water conservation declaration. 
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING DECLARATION OF A STAGE 4 

WATER SUPPLY CONDITION 
 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the declaration of a 
Stage 4 Water Supply Condition;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the declaration of a Stage 4 Water Supply Condition. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at the Casitas Municipal Water 
District, 1055 Ventura Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said 
hearing is hereby fixed as December 12, 2018, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Clerk of the Board of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said 
hearing by publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 14th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
James W. Word, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mary Bergen, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Michael L. Flood, Interim General Manager 

RE: Water Service Agreement with Meiners Oaks Water District 

Date:   September 19, 2018 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Board of Directors approve the water service agreement with Meiners Oaks Water District as 
presented. 

BACKGROUND: 
CMWD Management recently completed the negotiation of a water service agreement with 
the Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD) which a wholesale customer of CMWD. The intent 
of the agreement is to better reflect the water service relationship between the two districts 
especially as related to drought and specifically demand management through the Water 
Efficiency Allocation Program. 
 
Summary of important aspects in the agreement: 
 

- Identification of a specific Stage 1 allocation. 
-  Use of a July to June fiscal year as the annual term of the agreement. 
- Annual adjustment to the allocation assignment in May of each year. 
- Establishment of a conservation penalty for water use above the allocation. 
- CMWD has sole discretion on allocation assignment and conservation penalty. 
- MOWD notifies CMWD if their system experiences a significant failure and convene a 

meeting to adjust the allocation to adjust their allocation. 
- No use of the allocation assignment for new water service connections in MOWD’s 

service area. 
- Exhibit A contains the FY2018-19 water allocation assignment and demand 

management targets. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The expected impact of this agreement is better water management and planning between 
CMWD and MOWD. 















 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  MIKE FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  LINDSAY CAO, CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR 

FOR RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE  
DATE:  NOVEMBER 14, 2018 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors: 
  

• Determine all bidders on Rincon Pump Plant Electrical Upgrade undertaken by the 
District must be pre-qualified prior to submitting bids. 
 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
In 1999 the California State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 574 authorizing cities, counties, 
and special districts the ability to pre-qualify construction contractors for specific projects or for a 
specific duration. Public Contracts Code Section 21101 codifies the requirements for contractor 
prequalification and the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) prepared model forms for use 
by public agencies in the solicitation of pre-qualified contractors.  

The Rincon Pump Plant is in need of electrical upgrades to improve the efficiency of the facility 
and bring the facility into current code compliance. This project includes: expansion of the 
existing Rincon Pump Plant control room; installation of new switchgear and connecting it to the 
existing systems; installation of new underground conduits from the transformer to the new 
switchgear per Southern California Edison requirements; and installation of a low voltage panel.  
 
The attached Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was prepared using the DIR forms as a guide. 
The anticipated schedule milestones are: 
 

Issue RFQ November 15, 2018 
Pre-Qualification Meeting    December  5, 2018 
Deadline for Questions December 12, 2018 
Qualifications Due December 20, 2018 
Review Complete January 10, 2019 
Board Action  January 23, 2019 

 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no budget impact to this action. 
 
Attachment: Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Electrical and Building Contractors 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 

FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS 
FOR RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

 
 

Issued November 15, 2018 
 
 

Statements of Qualification will be received at the office of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District,  

1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California 93022 
until Thursday, December 20, 2018 @ 4:00 p.m.



 

 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE INVITING PREQUALIFICATION 
Electrical Contractors for Rincon Pump Plant Electrical Upgrade 

 
Notice is hereby given that Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas or District) has determined 
that all bidders on the Rincon Pump Plant Electrical Upgrade project to be undertaken by the 
District must be pre-qualified prior to submitting bids for the project. It is mandatory that all licensed 
Contractors who intend to submit a bid, fully complete the prequalification questionnaire, provide all 
materials requested herein, and be approved by the District to be on the final qualified Bidders list. 
No bid will be accepted from a Contractor who has failed to comply with these requirements. If two 
or more business entities submit a bid on a project as a Joint Venture, or expect to submit a bid as 
part of a Joint Venture, each entity within the Joint Venture must be separately qualified to bid. The 
last date to submit a fully completed questionnaire is December 20, 2018.  
 
The project includes the following general categories of work: 
 

 Expand control building by 770 square feet to house the new switch gear 

 Replace aging 2.4 kV-3φ service switchgear and primary service with new 2.4 kV-3φ 
service switchgear and primary service 

 Coordinate work with Southern California Edison 

 Implement the above with minimal disruption to water service 
 
The anticipated bid due date is March 15, 2019 and will be completed in phases. The expected 
project schedule: 1) Control building expansion will required to be rain-proofed before 
October 1, 2019 and 2) New switchgear will be required to be connected to existing system 
before March 1, 2020. 
  
An optional pre-qualification meeting will be held at the District office on Wednesday, 
December 5, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.  Questions regarding this RFQ must be submitted in writing no 
later than Wednesday, December 12, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Answers to questions contained in the attached questionnaire, information about current bonding 
capacity on an aggregate and per project limit, notarized statement from surety, and the most 
recent reviewed or audited financial statements, with accompanying notes and supplemental 
information, are required. Casitas will use these documents as the basis of rating Contractors in 
respect to the size and scope of contracts upon which each Contractor is qualified to bid. Casitas 
reserves the right to check other sources available. Casitas’ decision will be based on objective 
evaluation criteria. 
   
Casitas reserves the right to adjust, increase, limit, suspend or rescind the pre-qualification ratings 
based on subsequently learned information. Contractor whose rating changes sufficient to 
disqualify them will be notified, and given an opportunity for a hearing consistent with the hearing 
procedures described below for appealing a pre-qualification rating.  
 
While it is the intent of the pre-qualification questionnaire and documents required therewith to 
assist Casitas in determining bidder responsibility prior to the submission of bids and to aid  
Casitas in selecting the lowest responsible bidder, neither the fact of pre-qualification, nor any pre-
qualification rating, will preclude Casitas from a post-bid consideration and determination on a 
specific project of whether a bidder has the quality, fitness, capacity, and experience to 
satisfactorily perform the proposed work, and has demonstrated the requisite trustworthiness.  
Contractors are encouraged to submit pre-qualification packages no later than Thursday, 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

December 20, 2018, so they may be notified of pre-qualification status well in advance of the 
subjective project. 
 
Contractors seeking pre-qualification shall have a C-10 Electrical Contractor license within the 
State of California and shall demonstrate the minimum requirements as follows:   
 
• Contractor shall have successfully completed installation of high voltage switchgear 

equipment for at least 2 similar projects in the past six years. Contractor shall submit 
sufficient references with current contact information so the quality and quantity of the work 
can be determined. Contractor shall list the voltage of switchgears on each referenced 
project; or 

 
• Contractor shall have successfully completed electrical installation work for Casitas 

Municipal Water District within the last ten (10) years.  “Successful” shall mean the work 
was completed within a reasonable amount of time with minimal Contractor-originated 
change orders to the satisfaction of Casitas Municipal Water District.  The work may have 
been completed as either a general contractor or as a subcontractor. 

 
 
To contractors who are using subcontractors, please be advised Casitas may require, as to 
subcontractors, the qualification of subcontractors in the following crafts or trades, following 
acceptance of your bid, but before the award is made: 
 

 Building Contractor 
 
The pre-qualification packages should be submitted under seal and marked “CONFIDENTIAL” to: 

 
Lindsay Cao, PE, Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, California 93022 

 
The pre-qualification packages (questionnaire answers and financial statements) submitted by 
Contractors are not public records and are not open to public inspection. All information provided 
will be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law, although the contents may be disclosed to 
third parties for the purpose of verification, investigation of substantial allegations, and in the 
process of an appeal hearing. State law requires the names of contractors applying for pre-
qualification status shall be public records subject to disclosure, and the first page of the 
questionnaire will be used for that purpose. 
 
Each questionnaire must be signed under penalty of perjury in the manner designated at the end of 
the form, by an individual who has the legal authority to bind the Contractor on whose behalf that 
person is signing. If any information provided by a Contractor becomes inaccurate, the Contractor 
must immediately notify Casitas and provide updated accurate information in writing, under penalty 
of perjury. 
 
Casitas reserves the right to waive minor irregularities and omissions in the information contained 
in the pre-qualification application submitted, to make all final determinations, and to determine at 
any time the pre-qualification procedures will not be applied to a future public works project.   



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 
A Contractor who has submitted a completed application form, and who receives a rating of “not 
qualified” from Casitas may appeal that determination. There is no appeal from a finding that a 
Contractor is not pre-qualified because of a failure to submit required information, but re-application 
during one of the designated time periods is permitted. A Contractor may appeal Casitas’ decision 
with respect to its request for pre-qualification, and request a hearing, by giving notice to Casitas 
no later than ten business days after receipt of notice of its qualification status. Unless a Contractor 
files a timely appeal, the Contractor waives any and all rights to challenge the qualification decision 
of Casitas, whether by administrative process, judicial process or any other legal process or 
proceeding.  
 
If the Contractor gives the required notice of appeal and requests a hearing, the hearing shall be 
conducted so that it is concluded no later than ten business days after Casitas’ receipt of its Notice 
of Appeal. The hearing so provided shall be an informal process conducted by a panel to whom the 
Board of Directors of Casitas has delegated responsibility to hear such appeals (the “Appeals 
Panel”). At or prior to the hearing, the Contractor will be advised of the basis for Casitas’ pre-
qualification determination. The Contractor will be given the opportunity to present information and 
present reasons in opposition to the pre-qualification determination. At the conclusion of the 
hearing or no later than one day after completion of the hearing, the Appeals Panel will render its 
decision. The date for submission and opening of bids for a specific project will not be delayed or 
postponed to allow for completion of an appeal process.  
 
A Contractor may be found not pre-qualified for bidding on a specific public works contract to be let 
by Casitas, or on all contracts to be let by Casitas until the Contractor meets Casitas’ requirements. 
In addition, a Contractor may be found not pre-qualified for either: (1) Omission of requested 
information or (2) Falsification of information. 
 

* * * * * 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 
The Rincon Pump Plant, situated just below the Casitas Dam, lifts water from the Casitas Main to 
the Rincon Main. The plant is in need of electrical upgrades to improve the efficiency of the facility 
and bring the facility into current code compliance. 
 
The Rincon Pump Plant provides water to customers along Casitas Pass Road (Highway 150) and 
to all of the beach communities.   

 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

PREQUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

 
Accurately and completely fill in and answer all questions in the Contact Information Sheet, Parts I, 
II, and III. Inaccurate and incomplete responses may be grounds for disqualification. 
 
Contractors must receive a passing score in each of the five categories to be considered 
prequalified.  
 
For Part III, the District will interview two project owners, randomly selected from information 
provided in Part III. During these interviews, the project owners will be asked a series of questions 
regarding the management of the project, adherence to schedule, claims by the Contractor, claims 
against the Contractor, and the quality of the work. 
 
Scoring of each question is based upon criteria established in advance. After this package is 
approve for distribution, the District cannot influence how questions are scored. 
 
The point system is as follows: 
 
 

Part No. Description Points Possible Passing Score 

I Essential Requirements for Qualification N/A Must pass all 

II Organization, History, Organizational 
Performance, Compliance with Civil and 
Criminal Law 

129 90 

III Project Experience Based on Interviews 120 each 84 each 



 

 

 

 

 

 1 

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
 
Firm Name:         Check One:   Corporation 

        (as it appears on license)        Partnership 
            Sole Proprietor 
 
Contact Person:             
 
Address:              
 
Phone:       email:         
 
If firm is a sole proprietor or partnership:  
 
Owner(s) of Company             
 
Contractor’s License Number(s):  
 
              
   
              
 
              
 
 
 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 2 

PART I. ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR QUALIFICATION 
 
Contractor will be immediately disqualified if the answer to any of questions 1 through 5 is 
“No.”1 
 
Contractor will be immediately disqualified if the answer to any of questions 6, 7, 8 or 9 is 
“yes.”2 If the answer to question 8 is “yes,” and if debarment would be the sole reason for 
denial of pre-qualification, any pre-qualification issued will exclude the debarment period.   
 
1. Contractor possesses a valid and current California Contractor’s license for the project or 

projects for which it intends to submit a bid.  
   Yes   No 
 
2. Contractor has a liability insurance policy with a policy limit of at least $1,000,000 per 

occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate.  
   Yes   No 
 
3.  Contractor has current workers’ compensation insurance policy as required by the Labor 

Code or is legally self-insured pursuant to Labor Code section 3700 et. seq.   
  Yes   No   Contractor is exempt from this requirement, because it has 

    no employees 
 

4. Have you attached your latest copy of a reviewed or audited financial statement with 
accompanying notes and supplemental information?3 

   Yes   No 
 
A financial statement that is not either reviewed or audited is not acceptable.  A letter 
verifying availability of a line of credit may also be attached; however, it will be 
considered as supplemental information only, and is not a substitute for the required 
financial statement. 

 

                                                           
1
 A “no” answer to Question 4 will not be disqualifying if the contractor is exempt from complying with Question 4, for 

reasons explained in footnote 3.  
2
  A contractor disqualified solely because of a “Yes” answer given to question 6, 7, or 9 may appeal the disqualification 

and provide an explanation of the relevant circumstances during the appeal procedure. 
3
  Public Contract Code section 20101(e) exempts from this requirement a contractor who has qualified as a small 

business pursuant to Government Code section 14837(d)(1), if the bid is “no more than 25 percent of the qualifying amount provided 
in section 14837(d)(1).”  As of January 1, 2001, the qualifying amount is $10 million, and 25 percent of that amount, therefore, is 
$2.5 million.   



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 3 

5. Have you attached a notarized statement from an admitted surety insurer (approved by the 
California Department of Insurance) and authorized to issue bonds in the State of 
California, which states: (a) your current bonding capacity is sufficient for the project for 
which you seek pre-qualification if you are seeking pre-qualification for a single project; or 
(if you are seeking pre-qualification valid for a year) (b) your current available bonding 
capacity?4 Notarized statement must be from the surety company, not an agent or 
broker. 

   Yes   No 
 

6.  Has your contractor’s license been revoked at any time in the last five years?    
   Yes   No 
 
7. Has a surety firm completed a contract on your behalf, or paid for completion because your 

firm was default terminated by the project owner within the last five years? 
   Yes   No 
 
8.  At the time of submitting this pre-qualification form, is your firm ineligible to bid on or be 

awarded a public works contract, or perform as a subcontractor on a public works contract, 
pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor Code section 1777.7? 

   Yes   No 
 If the answer is “Yes,” state the beginning and ending dates of the period of debarment:  
 
 Begin Date:       End Date:       
 
9.  At any time during the last five years, has your firm, or any of its owners or officers, been 

convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a contract of a government construction 
project, or the bidding or performance of a government contract?  

   Yes   No 
 
 
 

END OF SECTION I 
 

                                                           
4
  An additional notarized statement from the surety may be requested by Casitas at the time of submission of a bid, if this 

pre-qualification package is submitted more than 60 days prior to submission of the bid.   



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 4 

PART II. ORGANIZATION, HISTORY, ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE, 
COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL AND CRIMINAL LAWS 

 
A. Current Organization and Structure of the Business 
 
For Corporations: 
 
1a.  Date incorporated:    
1b. Under the laws of what State:    
1c. Provide all the following information for each person who is either (a) an officer of the 

corporation (president, vice president, secretary, treasurer), or (b) the owner of at least ten 
percent of the corporation’s stock. 

 

Name Position Years with 
Company 

% Ownership Social Security # 

     

     

     

     

     

 
1d.  Identify every construction firm any person listed above has been associated with (as 

owner, general partner, limited partner or officer) at any time during the last five years. For 
this question, “owner” and “partner” refer to ownership of ten percent or more of the 
business, or 10 percent or more of its stock, if the business is a corporation.  
 

 
Name 

 
Construction Firm 

Dates of Person’s Participation 
with Firm 

   

   

   

   

 
For Partnerships: 
 
1a. Date of formation: __________________  
1b.  Under the laws of what State: __________ 
1c.  Provide all the following information for each partner who owns 10 percent or more of the 

firm.   
 

Name Position Years with 
Co. 

% Ownership Social Security # 

     

     

     

     



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 5 

 
1d.  Identify every construction company any partner has been associated with (as owner, 

general partner, limited partner or officer) at any time during the last five years. For this 
question, “owner” and “partner” refer to ownership of ten percent or more of the 
business, or ten percent or more of its stock, if the business is a corporation.  
 

 
Name 

 
Construction Company 

Dates of Person’s Participation 
with Company 

   

   

   

   

 
For Sole Proprietorships: 
 
1a. Date of commencement of business:     
1b. Social security number of company owner:      
1c. Identify every construction firm that the business owner has been associated with (as 

owner, general partner, limited partner or officer) at any time during the last five years. For 
this question, “owner” and “partner” refer to ownership of ten percent or more of the 
business, or ten percent or more of its stock, if the business is a corporation.  
 

 
Name 

 
Construction Company 

Dates of Person’s Participation 
with Company 

   

   

   

   

 
For Joint Ventures: 
 
1a. Date of commencement of joint venture:     
1b. Provide all of the following information for each firm that is a member of the joint venture 

that expects to bid on one or more projects: 
 

Name of Firm % Ownership of Joint Venture 

  

  

  

  

 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 6 

B.  History of the Business and Organizational Performance 
 
2. Has there been any change in ownership of the firm at any time during the last three years?  

A corporation whose shares are publicly traded is not required to answer this 
question. 

   Yes   No 
 If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page. 
  
3. Is the firm a subsidiary, parent, holding company or affiliate of another construction firm?  

Include information about other firms if one firm owns 50 percent or more of 
another, or if an owner, partner, or officer of your firm holds a similar position in 
another firm. 

  Yes    No 
 If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page. 
  
4. Are any corporate officers, partners or owners connected to any other construction firms? 
 Include information about other firms if an owner, partner, or officer of your firm 

holds a similar position in another firm.  
   Yes   No 
 If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page. 
 
5.  State your firm’s gross revenues for each of the last three years: 
 
 $   (2017)  
 $   (2016)  
 $   (2015)  
 
6. How many years has your organization been in business in California as a contractor under 

your present business name and license number?     years 
 
7. Is your firm currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case? 
   Yes   No 

If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number, and the 
date on which the petition was filed.  
 

8. Was your firm in bankruptcy at any time during the last five years?  (This question refers 
only to a bankruptcy action that was not described in answer to question 7, above)   

   Yes   No 
 If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number and 
the date on which the petition was filed, and a copy of the Bankruptcy Court’s discharge 
order, or of any other document that ended the case, if no discharge order was issued.  
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 7 

Licenses 
 
9. List all California construction license numbers, classifications and expiration dates of 

the California contractor licenses held by your firm:  
   

Contractor License No. Classification Expiration Date 

   

   

   

 
10. If any of your firm’s license(s) are held in the name of a corporation or partnership, provide 

the names of the qualifying individual(s) listed on the CSLB records who meet(s) the 
experience and examination requirements for each license.  

  
 ________________________________________   
 
 ________________________________________  
 
11. Has your firm changed names or license number in the past five years? 
   Yes   No 

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page, including the reason for the change. 
 
12. Has any owner, partner or (for corporations) officer of your firm operated a construction 

firm under any other name in the last five years?  
   Yes   No 

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page, including the reason for the change. 
   
13. Has any CSLB license held by your firm or its Responsible Managing Employee (RME) 

or Responsible Managing Officer (RMO) been suspended within the last five years?  
   Yes   No 
 If “yes,” please explain on a separate signed sheet. 
 
Disputes   
 
14. At any time in the last five years has your firm been assessed and paid liquidated 

damages after completion of a project under a construction contract with either a public 
or private owner? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes”, explain on a separate signed page, identifying all such projects by owner, owner’s 
address, the date of completion of the project, amount of liquidated damages assessed and 
all other information necessary to fully explain the assessment of liquidated damages. 

 
15. In the last five years has your firm, or any firm with which any of your company’s owners, 

officers or partners was associated, been debarred, disqualified, removed or otherwise 
prevented from bidding on, or completing, any government agency or public works project 
for any reason? “Associated with” refers to another construction firm in which an 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 8 

owner, partner or officer of your firm held a similar position, and which is listed in 
response to question 1c or 1d on this form. 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page. State whether the firm involved was the firm 
applying for pre-qualification here or another firm. Identify by name of the company, the 
name of the person within your firm who was associated with that company, the year of the 
event, the owner of the project, the project and the basis for the action. 

 
16. In the last five years has your firm been denied an award of a public works contract based 

on a finding by a public agency that your company was not a responsible bidder?   
  Yes   No 

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page.  Identify the year of the event, the owner, the 
project and the basis for the finding by the public agency. 

  
 The following two questions refer only to disputes between your firm and the owner 

of a project. You need not include information about disputes between your firm and 
a supplier, another contractor, or subcontractor. You need not include information 
about “pass-through” disputes in which the actual dispute is between a sub-
contractor and a project owner.  Also, you may omit reference to all disputes about 
amounts of less than $50,000. 

 
17. In the past five years has any claim against your firm concerning your firm’s work on a 

construction project been filed in court or arbitration? 
  Yes   No 

 If “yes,” on separate signed sheets of paper identify the claim(s) by providing the project 
name, date of the claim, name of the claimant, a brief description of the nature of the 
claim, the court in which the case was filed and a brief description of the status of the 
claim (pending or, if resolved, a brief description of the resolution). 

 
18. In the past five years has your firm made any claim against a project owner concerning 

work on a project or payment for a contract and filed that claim in court or arbitration? 
  Yes   No 

If “yes,” on separate signed sheets of paper identify the claim by providing the project 
name, date of the claim, name of the entity (or entities) against whom the claim was 
filed, a brief description of the nature of the claim, the court in which the case was filed 
and a brief description of the status of the claim (pending, or if resolved, a brief 
description of the resolution). 
 

19. At any time during the past five years, has any surety company made any payments on 
your firm’s behalf as a result of a default, to satisfy any claims made against a 
performance or payment bond issued on your firm’s behalf, in connection with a 
construction project, either public or private? 

  Yes   No 
 
If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page the amount of each such claim, the name 
and telephone number of the claimant, the date of the claim, the grounds for the claim, 
the present status of the claim, the date of resolution of such claim if resolved, the 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 9 

method by which such was resolved if resolved, the nature of the resolution and the 
amount, if any, at which the claim was resolved. 
 

20. In the last five years has any insurance carrier, for any form of insurance, refused to renew 
the insurance policy for your firm? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page. Name the insurance carrier, the form of 
insurance and the year of the refusal. 
 

Criminal Matters and Related Civil Suits 
 
21. Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been found liable in a civil 

suit or found guilty in a criminal action for making any false claim or material 
misrepresentation to any public agency or entity?   

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page, including identifying who was involved, the 
name of the public agency, the date of the investigation and the grounds for the finding. 

 
22. Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been convicted of a crime 

involving any federal, state, or local law related to construction? 
  Yes   No 

If “yes,” explain on a separate signed page, including identifying who was involved, the 
name of the public agency, the date of the conviction and the grounds for the conviction. 
 

23. Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been convicted of a federal 
or state crime of fraud, theft, or any other act of dishonesty?  

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” identify on a separate signed  page the person or persons convicted, the court (the 
county if a state court, the district or location of the federal court), the year and the criminal 
conduct. 

 
Bonding 
 
24. Provide documentation from your surety identifying the following: 

 
Name of bonding company/surety:         

 Name of surety agent, address and telephone number:       
 Name:      Phone No.:      
 Address:            
 City, State, Zip:            
 
25. If your firm was required to pay a premium of more than one percent for a performance 

and payment bond on any project(s) on which your firm worked at any time during the 
last three years, state the percentage your firm was required to pay. You may provide an 
explanation for a percentage rate higher than one percent, if you wish to do so.  

  
           



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 10 

 
26. List all other sureties (name and full address) that have written bonds for your firm during 

the last five years, including the dates during which each wrote the bonds: 
 

Name Full Address Dates – From and To 

   

  

   

  

   

  

 
27. During the last five years, has your firm ever been denied bond coverage by a surety 

company, or has there ever been a period of time when your firm had no surety bond in 
place during a public construction project when one was required? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes”, provide details on a separate signed sheet indicating the date when your firm 
was denied coverage and the name of the company or companies which denied 
coverage; and the period during which you had no surety bond in place.  
 

C.  Compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Laws and with Other Labor 
Legislation Safety 

 
28. Has CAL OSHA cited and assessed penalties against your firm for any “serious,” “willful” 

or “repeat” violations of its safety or health regulations in the past five years? If you 
have filed an appeal of a citation, and the Occupational Safety and Health Appeals 
Board has not yet ruled on your appeal, you need not include information about it. 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” attached a separate signed page describing the citations, including information 
about the dates of the citations, the nature of the violation, the project on which the 
citation(s) was or were issued, the amount of penalty paid, if any. If the citation was 
appealed to the Occupational Safety and Health Appeals Board and a decision has been 
issued, state the case number and the date of the decision.   

 
29. Has the federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration cited and assessed 

penalties against your firm in the past five years? If you have filed an appeal of a 
citation and the Appeals Board has not yet ruled on your appeal, or if there is a 
court appeal pending, you need not include information about the citation. 

  Yes   No 
 If “yes,” attach a separate signed page describing each citation. 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 11 

30.  Has the EPA or any Air Quality Management District or any Regional Water Quality 
Control Board cited and assessed penalties against either your firm or the owner of a 
project on which your firm was the contractor, in the past five years?  If you have filed 
an appeal of a citation and the Appeals Board has not yet ruled on your appeal, or 
if there is a court appeal pending, you need not include information about the 
citation. 

   Yes   No 
 If “yes,” attach a separate signed page describing each citation. 
  
31. How often do you require documented safety meetings to be held for construction 

employees and field supervisors during the course of a project? 
 

     
 
 
32.  List your firm’s Experience Modification Rate (EMR) (California workers’ compensation 

insurance) for each of the past three premium years:  
An Experience Modification Rate is issued to your firm annually by your workers’ 
compensation insurance carrier.  
 

 2017:     
 
 2016:      
 
 2015:     
 

If your EMR for any of these three years is or was 1.00 or higher you may, if you wish, 
attach a letter of explanation. 
 

33. Within the last five years has there ever been a period when your firm had employees but 
was without workers’ compensation insurance or state-approved self-insurance? 

  Yes    No 
If “yes,” please explain the reason for the absence of workers’ compensation insurance on 
a separate signed page.  If “No,” please provide a statement by your current workers’ 
compensation insurance carrier that verifies periods of workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage for the last five years. (If your firm has been in the construction business for less 
than five years, provide a statement by your workers’ compensation insurance carrier 
verifying continuous workers’ compensation insurance coverage for the period that your 
firm has been in the construction business.)  

 
Prevailing Wage and Apprenticeship Compliance Record 
 
34. Has there been more than one occasion during the last five years in which your firm was 

required to pay either back wages or penalties for your own firm’s failure to comply with the 
state’s prevailing wage laws? This question refers only to your own firm’s violation of 
prevailing wage laws, not to violations of the prevailing wage laws by a subcontractor.   

  Yes   No 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 12 

 If “yes,” attach a separate signed page or pages, describing the nature of each violation, 
identifying the name of the project, the date of its completion, the public agency for which it 
was constructed; the number of employees who were initially underpaid and the amount of 
back wages and penalties that you were required to pay. 

    
35. During the last five years, has there been more than one occasion in which your own firm 

has been penalized or required to pay back wages for failure to comply with the federal 
Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements?  

   Yes   No 
If “yes,” attach a separate signed page or pages describing the nature of the violation, 
identifying the name of the project, the date of its completion, the public agency for 
which it was constructed; the number of employees who were initially underpaid, the 
amount of back wages you were required to pay along with the amount of any penalty 
paid. 

 
36. Provide the name, address and telephone number of the apprenticeship program 

(approved by the California Apprenticeship Council) from whom you intend to request the 
dispatch of apprentices to your company for use on any public work project for which you 
are awarded a contract by Casitas.  

 
         
 
         
  
37.  If your firm operates its own State-approved apprenticeship program:  

 
(a) Identify the craft or crafts in which your firm provided apprenticeship training in 

the past year.  
 

             
 

             
 

(b) State the year in which each such apprenticeship program was approved, and 
attach evidence of the most recent California Apprenticeship Council approval(s) 
of your apprenticeship program(s).   
 

             
  

(c) State the number of individuals who were employed by your firm as apprentices 
at any time during the past three years in each apprenticeship and the number of 
persons who, during the past three years, completed apprenticeships in each 
craft while employed by your firm. 

 
              
 
              



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 13 

 
              
 
38. At any time during the last five years, has your firm been found to have violated any 

provision of California apprenticeship laws or regulations, or the laws pertaining to use of 
apprentices on public works?  You may omit reference to any incident that occurred 
prior to January 1, 1998, if the violation was by a subcontractor and your firm, as 
general contractor on a project, had no knowledge of the subcontractor’s violation 
at the time they occurred.  

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” provide the date(s) of such findings, and attach copies of the Department’s final 
decision(s). 
 

END OF SECTION II 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 14 

PART III. RECENT CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS COMPLETED 
 
39. Provide information about your six most recently completed public works projects and three 

largest completed private projects within the last three years.5  Names and references 
must be current and verifiable.  Use separate sheets of paper that contain all of the 
following information: 

 
Project Name:            
 

 Location:             
 

Owner:             
 
Owner Contact 
 
 Name:       
 
 Phone:       
  
 Email:        
 
Architect or Engineer: ________________________________________ 

 
Architect or Engineer Contact 
 
  Name:       
 
 Phone:       
  
 Email:        
 
Construction Manager: 
 
 Name:       
 
 Phone:       
  
 Email:        
 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: 
 
              
 
              
 

                                                           
5
 If you wish, you may, using the same format, also provide information about other projects that you have completed that 

are similar to the project(s) for which you expect to bid. 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 15 

Total Value of Construction (including change orders): $       
 

Original Scheduled Completion Date:           
 

Time Extensions Granted (number of days):          
 
Actual Date of Completion:            
 

 
 

END OF SECTION III 
 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 16 

MODEL INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 
 

The following questions will be used to interview randomly selected contacts from at least two 
completed projects. Casitas will conduct the interviews. No action on the contractor’s part is 
necessary. These questions are included on the package given to the contractor for information 
only. 
 
The highest possible score is 120 Points. A score less than 55 points disqualifies a contractor 
from bidding on projects that are proposed by Casitas. A score of between 56 and 83 indicates 
Casitas should conduct an interview of another contact, that is, a manager of another completed 
project. A score of 84 or higher on each of two interviews is sufficient for pre-qualification.   

 
 First, please give a brief description of the project. 
 
1. Are there any outstanding stop notices, liens, or claims by the contractor that are currently 

unresolved on contracts for which notices of completion were recorded more than 120 days 
ago?  (1 point for each is deducted from overall score; maximum amount to be deducted is 
5 points) 

 
2. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, did the contractor provide adequate personnel?  

(Max. 10 points) 
 
3. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, did the contractor provide adequate 

supervision?  (Max. 10 points) 
 
4. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, was there adequate equipment provided on the 

job?  (Max. 10 points) 
 
5. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, was the contractor timely in providing reports 

and other paperwork, including change order paperwork and scheduling updates?  (Max. 
10 points) 

 
6.  On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, did the contractor adhere to the project 

schedule that your [agency] [business] approved? (Max. 10 points) 
 
7. Was the project completed on time? (10 points if the answer is “Yes”). 

Or, if the answer is “no,” on a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, to what extent was 
the contractor responsible for the delay in completion? 

 
8. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, rate the contractor on the timely submission of 

reasonable cost and time estimates to perform change order work. (Max. 10 points) 
 
9. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, rate the contractor on how well the contractor 

performed the work after a change order was issued, and how well the contractor 
integrated the change order work into the existing work.  (Max. 10 points). 

 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 17 

10. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, rate how has the contractor been performing 
in the area of turning in Operation & Maintenance manuals, completing as-built 
drawings, providing required training and taking care of warranty items?  (Max. 10 
points) 

 
11. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, rate the contractor on whether there were an 

unusually high number of claims, given the nature of the project, or unusual difficulty in 
resolving them.  (Max. 10 points) 

 
12. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the highest, rate the contractor with respect to timely 

payments by the contractor to either subcontractors or suppliers.  (If the person being 
interviewed knows of no such difficulties, the score on this question should be “10.”)  

 
13. On a scale of 1-10, with 10 being the best, how would you rate the quality of the work 

overall?   (Max. 10 points) 
 
 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 FOR ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS FOR 

RINCON PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
November 15, 2018 

 
 

 

 18 

 
 I, the undersigned, certify and declare I have read all the foregoing answers to this 
prequalification questionnaire and know their contents. The matters stated in the 
questionnaire answers are true of my own knowledge and belief, except as to those 
matters stated on information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true.  
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the 
foregoing is correct.  
       
 
Dated:      Signed:       
      
     Printed Name:        

 
 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  MICHAEL FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE AND FILE 2018 CONDITION-BASED ASSESSMENT AND 

WATER MASTER PLAN  
DATE: 11/14/2018 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors receive and file the 2018 Condition-Based 
Assessment and Water Master Plan prepared by Water System Consulting, Inc. 
(WSC). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 8, 2017, Casitas acquired the Ojai assets of Golden State Water Company, 
now referred to as the Ojai Water System. The 2018 Condition-Based Assessment and 
Water Master Plan was prepared to understand the condition of the assets the District 
acquired and have a comprehensive plan to manage the Ojai Water System going 
forward. The project included a review of the condition of acquired assets (pipelines, 
tanks, and wells), a hydraulic model of the system, an engineering assessment of the 
capability of the system to meet current and future water demands, and identification of 
areas needing replacement or improvements. Three-year and ten-year capital 
improvement programs for the Ojai Water System were prepared and include 
significant investment in the infrastructure to improve fire flow and replace facilities 
which are beyond their useful life. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no budget impact to receive and file the report. Projects will be presented to 
the Board for specific budgetary actions as needed. 
 
 



Final Draft

2018
CONDITION BASED 

ASSESSMENT & WATER 
MASTER PLAN

for 
Casitas Municipal 

Water District

October 2018



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 
 � �

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �

! " # $ % & ' (


W X � Y Z � � [ � � � \ � � ] � � � � � ^ � � � � � � _ � � ` � � ] � � � � a � � � b � � c � _ � � de � � c � � ] � � � � a � � � � X � Y Z � � f � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � � c � a � _ � ] � � � � a � � � g � h � � � � � � � i j � � � � _ c � � � � � � � � a c � c � � � � � � � � � k � � � � c [ [ � ^ � _ � � � � � � � _ � � \ �� � � � � � � � \ � ^ ] � � X � X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � l � � m � � � � � n � c [ [ � ^ � � c � _ � � i o � ] � ` � � k � X �p n � � c � � ] � � � � ] � � � � � � � � n � � n � � � X � ` � � m [ � � � � � _ � � � � � n � � a � _ � � �� � _ � � � � � � � [ � � � c _ � � � � � � � _ � � X � ^ ] � � � _ � � � � � c _ � � � i W � � � [ � � ` � � c [ [ � ^� � � � � \ � � � � ^ k � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � c _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � _ � � � �\ � � ] � � � � X � Y Z � � ] � � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � X � � � � �  � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � � � � \ c � � � �� ^ � � � � i� � � � ` � � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � a � X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � ] � � � a � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X �[ � � � c _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � c � � � � X � � � _ � c � � � ` � � � � c � � � a � X �n � � c � � ] � � � � _ � � n n � � n � X � ] � � � _ � � � � n � i W � � � [ � � ` � ] � � � [ � � a � � � � � _ � k � �� � � � _ � � � � � � � � � X � b � � ] � � � ] � � � � � � � a c � � ^ � � X � \ � � � � � � � � k � � _ � c � � � n_ X � � � _ � � � � � � � _ X � � � _ � � ] � � � � � X � \ � � � � � � � � � k � � � � _ � � � � � [ � � � c _ � � � � _ � [ � _ � � ^ i � � � � � � � � X � � n � � a � X �� m � � � � � n ] � � � � k � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � q c � [ � � � ] n � � c � � ] � � � � ] � � � � � � � [ � � _ � � � a � X � � n � � n] � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � n � � c � � ] � � � � [ � � � c _ � � � � i

r s t u v w x y y z {| } } ~ t u v � x � yw t s t � } � ~w t } v s � u� � ~ t v � � x t � } � �� v s � ~ � � ~ ~ � } � � � y u z � � u ~� y u v s t � } � s z � � s z { ~ � ~� u � } � � u � � u �� � y v } � u � u � t ~



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 
 � �

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  b

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � [ � � � � � � � \ � � � � � � [ c � [ � � � � � � � � ] � � X � � � X � Y Z � � ] � � � � � ^ � � � � k ] X � _ X [ c � [ ] � � � �a � � � � X � � � ] � � � � � � � � \ c � � � � � � � � � � � X � n X � � � � � � � k � � � a � � � � � � � � n � � � � � � ` � � � � i � � � [ c � [ � � � � � � � � � � �� � � q c � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � � � � � X � � ^ � � � � l � � � � � � � � � m _ � [ � a � � � X � o � � � � � \ � � n � � � c � [ � � � � � � � i � � _ � c � � � X � �[ c � [ � � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � � � � ] � � X � c � n � � ` � � ^ � � � � � n � k � � � [ c � [ � � n _ � [ � _ � � ^ � c � � � � � � � � m � � c � � � ^� � � � � � [ � c � a � � � a � � ] i � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � a � � � [ c � [ � � � X � o � � � � � \ � � n � � � c � [ � � � � � � � � � � � � �� X � � _ � � � � � � � � iW X � _ � � � � � � � � � a � X � [ c � [ � � � � � � � � ] � � � ` � � c � � � � \ � � � � � � � � _ c � � � � � � � � � � a � � � � � � � � � _ � k � � _ � � � [ c � [� � � � � k � � � h � � ] � � � n � a � � �  � � � � [ � � � � � � � � � � � a a i W X � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � n � � a � � � [ � � � � � a � � � i � � � Z � _ � �� � n � � � � � n � X � � [ � _ � a � _ _ � � � � � � � � � a � X � [ c � [ � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � c � � � � � � X �  � [ � � � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � � � � � �  � � � k� � � � � � � � m [ � _ � � � � � � [ c � [ � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � q c � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � \ � � � � � � � � � � � � � Z � � � � [ � � _ � � � � � � � ` � �� X � � � m � � � ^ � � � � iW X � � � � � � p � � � � � n � � � � � � ` � � � � � X � � [ � � ` � � � � � � � � � � � a � i � � � � � � � � � n � � � � � � � a � [ � � � � � � � � � k � � � � n � � _ ^ k � � �a � � � a � � ] � � � � � n � a � � � X � Y Z � � [ � � � \ � � ] � � � � � � � � � � \ c � � � � � ^ � � � � i W X � � m � � � � � n � � � � � n � � � a � _ � � � � � X � Y Z � �� ^ � � � � � � � � � k � � � n � � � � � � k � � � � � � � � m [ � _ � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � \ � c � � � � k � � � n � � � � � � \ ^ b � b � ] � � X � c �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � n � ` � � c � � iW X � p � � � � � n � � � � h � ] � � � � � ` � � � � � � � � [ � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � � m � � � � � n _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � �a � � � � X � \ � � � � � � � � � i W X � b � c � � � � n � � � n � W � � h � � � � � � [ � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � a � �� � [ � � _ � � � � � i W X � � � n � � � W � � h � � � � � � � � [ � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � c � � � � � � � n � � � � � m _ � � � � � � � � n � k � � � � � �� � _ � � � � � � � � a � � � � [ � � _ � � � � � i W X � � � � � � � � � n � � � � � � ` � � � � � � � � � a � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � a � �� � � � � � � X � \ � � � � � � � � � i� � � � � � � a p � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � � [ � � [ � � � � � � � � [ � � ` � � X � � ^ � � � � � � � � � n � � � a � _ � � � X � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � X � � m � � � � � n_ � � � � � � � � � a � X � � � � � � ` � � � � i W X � a � � � � � � � � � � n � � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � _ � c � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � � � � � X � � c � � � � n � � � n �� � � o � � � � � \ � � n � � � � � � � � j [ [ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � _ � c � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � � � � � X � � � n � � � k � � � � k� � � � � � � � � g � � � � � � � � � g � ] � � � � � � � � i W X � � � � c � � � � � � � _ � c � � � X � � \ � � � � � � � � � � a � X � � c � � � � n � � � n � W � � h �� � � � X � � � n � � � W � � h � � � � � [ � � _ � � � � � � a � X � � � � � � ` � � � � � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � � � � � � � � � \ � � [ c � [ � � n _ � [ � _ � � ^ � � �� � � � _ � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � c _ � � � � � � n � � � � � � � � � � � i � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � X � �  � � � [ � � a � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � ^ � � � � a � X � p � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � c � � � � � � � � [ � � ` � � ^ � � � � � � � � � n � iW X � Y Z � � [ � � � \ � � ] � � � � � ^ � � � � _ � � � � � � � � a � [ [ � � m � � � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � a � � � � � � \ c � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �[ � [ � � � � � � i W X � X ^ � � � c � � _ � � � � � ] � � c � � � � � � ` � � c � � � � ^ � � � � [ � � � � c � � � � � � [ � [ � � � � � _ � [ � _ � � ^ i � � � � � � � � �� � � X � � � � � � � \ c � � � � � ^ � � � � ] � � � a � c � � � � X � ` � � � � q c � � � [ � � � � c � � � � _ � � � � � � � � n � � a � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � iW X � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � a � � � � � X � ` � � n � � ] � � X � n X [ � � � � c � � � c � � � � � � ` � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � n � � ` � � ^� � � � � ` � � � � � � � _ X � � � � k \ c � � � � � � ^ � a a � _ � � � a � ] � � � ` � _ � � i W X � � � � � � � � � ^ c � � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � � �� � _ � � � � � � � � a � � c [ n � � � � � � � � [ � � ` � � ^ � � � � a � � � a � � ] � � � [ � [ � � � � � ` � � � _ � � � � � i W X � � � [ � � Z � _ � � � � [ � � � � � �� \ � c � � i � � � � � � � a [ � [ � � � � � c [ n � � � � � � � � � � _ � c � � � � � n � � a � _ � � � [ � � � � � � � a � X � [ � � Z � _ � � � � _ � c � � � � � � X �  � � i



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 
 � �

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �

� � [ � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � ` � � c � � � � c � � � n [ � [ � � n � k � � � � � � � � k X � � � � � � _ � � � h � � [ � � � � k � � �  � � �� [ � � � � � � � � � � � a a h � � ] � � � n � i � \ � c � � � � � � � � a [ � [ � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � a � � � � [ � � _ � � � � � � �� \ � � � � � � � � � \ � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � c � � � � � � X �  � � i � [ � [ � � � � � � � [ � � _ � � � � � _ c � ` � ] � �n � � � � � � � � \ � � � � � � ] X � � [ � [ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � m [ � _ � � � � � � � � _ X � X � � � � � a � X � � � c � � a c � � � ` � � i � � � � � � n �� � � � _ � � � � ` � � � � � � � � � a [ � [ � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � m _ � � � � � n � X � � � c � � a c � � � a � k � � � � � _ � c � � � n � X � [ � [ � � � � � � � � a � � �� � � _ � [ � _ � � ^ � � _ � � � � � � � � [ � � Z � _ � i � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � �  � � � \ c � n � � � � i � b � � � � � � � a � � [ � [ � � � � �� � [ � � _ � � � � � � � � � c � � � ^ � � � � [ � � _ � � n � � n � � a � � � � � c _ � c � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � \ � � � � � ` � _ � � � � m � � � � � n _ c � � � � � � � iW X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � � [ � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � � ` � � c � � � � � � � � � _ � c � � � � ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ � � � � ^ � � � � � � [ c � [ � � n_ � � � � � � � � � � � ^ � � � i  c � � � � � � ^ k � X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � � � � � ` � � � X � n X q c � � � � ^ [ � � � \ � � ] � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � h � � n ] � � � � � � � � � � � � � i W X � X ^ � � � c � � _ � � � � � ] � � c � � � � � � ` � � c � � � � X � ] � � � � � n � � X � � c n X � c � � X �� � � � � � \ c � � � � � ^ � � � � i W X � � � � � � � � � � � _ � n � � � � � � � � � � � � � a � � ] � � � � � n � k \ c � � � � � n � � � � � � � ^ � _ _ � [ � � � � � � �� � � � � � _ � � � � � c � � � � � � � a ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ ] � � X � X � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � [ � � � � � n � � � � ] � � ] � � � � � n �� � � \ � � � � � ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ i W X � � � � � ^ � � � [ � � � � _ � � � X � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � X � ` � � � � ] ] � � � �� n � _ � � � � � [ � � � � � n � � X � n X ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ i W X � � � � � � j [ [ � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � � � � X � ` � � n � X � � � � � � � ] � � � � i� � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � X � �  � � � _ � � � � � c � � [ � [ � a � c � X � � n � � � � � � � � k � � � � [ � � � � � � � [ � [ � a � c � X � � n [ � � n � � � k� � � � [ � � ` � ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ � � � � � ] � � ] � � � � � n � i W X � � � � � ^ � � � � � � � [ � � � � _ � � � _ _ � � � � � � � \ � � � � � � n � a ] � � � �\ � � ] � � � � X � o � � � � � \ � � n � � W � � h � � � � c � � � � n � � � n � � � � � � � � � � � ] � � � � n � X � � � n � � � W � � h � [ � � � � � � n � � � n �] � � � � � [ � � ` � ] � � � � q c � � � � ^ iW X � [ c � [ � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � [ � � � � � � � � ] � � � � � � � � ` � � c � � � � i  � � � � � � a a � ^ [ � _ � � � ^ _ � � � � � � c � b [ c � [ �� � � c � � � � � � c � � ^ � � � X � � � \ � � � � � k f � � � � ^ f � � ] k � � � � � � � � � � � � � � c � [ � � � � � � � � � c � � � X � n X � � � _ X � � n �[ � � � � c � � � i � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � _ � � � � � � � � � � X � � � \ � � � � � � c � [ � � � � � � � � � � X � c n X b [ c � [ �� � ^ � _ _ � � � � � � � � ^ � [ � � � � � � � � c � � � � � � c � � ^ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � X � ] � � � � � � ` � � � � � X � � c � � � � n � � � n � W � � h � iW X � X � n X � � � _ X � � n � [ � � � � c � � � � � � X � f � � � � ^ f � � ] � c � [ � � � � � � � � � � c � � � � � � � � � ` � � � � � _ � � [ � � � � � � � X �o � � � � � \ � � n � � W � � h i W � � � � � � ` � [ � � � � c � � � X � � � k � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � _ � � � � X � f � � � � ^ f � � ] � c � [ � � � � � � �� � � X � n X � � � � � ` � � � � � i W X � X � n X � � � _ X � � n � [ � � � � c � � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � � � � c � [ � � � � � � � � � � � c � � � X � n X X � � �� � � � � � ] � � X � � � X � � � � � � � \ c � � � � � ^ � � � � i � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � � � [ � � _ � � n � � n _ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ] � � X � �� X � � ^ � � � � � � � � � c _ � � X � � ^ � � � � X � � � � � � � k a � � � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � � � � c � [ � � � � � � � � ^ � � � � _ c � ` � k � � � � � ] � �� � � _ X � � n � [ � � � � c � � � i



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 
 � �

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �

W X � � � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � [ � � Z � _ � � � � _ � � � � _ � � m � � � � � n � � � � � � � _ � [ � � � � a c � c � � � � a � _ � � � _ � � � � � � [ [ � � m � � � � � � ^� b � � � � � � � � i W X � [ � � Z � _ � � � � � n � � c [ � � � � � � b _ � � � n � � � � � k � � � � � � � ^ � � � � � � � � � � � ^ � i � � � � � � � ^ � [ � � Z � _ � � � � �X � n X � � [ � � � � � � ^ � � � � � � n � � � � � � � ^ a � � � _ � � � � � � _ _ c � � � � � � � ^ � � � � i � � � � � � � ^ � [ � � Z � _ � � � � � � � � ] � � [ � � � � � � ^� � � � � � � � � � � � � n � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � X � � � � � �  ^ � � � � � � � a � � � � i W � \ � � �  � � c � � � � � � � � � X � � � _ � � � � � � � �_ � [ � � � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � [ � � Z � _ � � � � � X � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � [ � � Z � _ �_ � � � � i � � � Z � _ � _ � � � � [ � � � � � � � � � � � X � � � � \ � � � � � [ � � � � � � n � � ` � � k _ � � � � � a � � � � �  � � � � �  � � _ � [ � c � � � � [ � � � � � � � � a � _ � � � � � � a Y [ � � � � � � a � � � \ � \ � �  � � � � � c _ � � � �  � � � � � � � � ` � � � [ � � \ ^ � X � � � � � _ � � � � � � a � � � X �� � ` � � _ � � � � � � a  � � �   � n � � � � � � � n k � � � � � _ � c � � � � � h c [ � a � � _ � � � � � c _ � � � � _ � � � � � n � � _ ^ k [ � � Z � _ �� � [ � � � � � � � � � � � k � � � _ � � � � � c _ � � � � [ X � � � � c [ [ � � � i � � n c � � �  � � � _ � c � � � � � � [ � a � X � Y Z � � � ^ � � � � ] � � X � X �� � _ � � � � � � � � _ � [ � � � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � [ � � Z � _ � � i � � � � � � k � � _ � � � � � ] � � X � X � � � � c � ^ k � X � ] � � � � � n �  � _ � � � � � [� a � X � � � � � � � \ c � � � � � ^ � � � � � � _ � � � � � � � � � � [ � � ` � � � � � � i



� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 
 � �

 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �

¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § ¦ ¨ © ¥ ª « ¬ ¬ ¥  ® ¥ ® ¯ ¢ ° ± ² ¢ ¤ ³ ¬ ° ´ « µ ¥ ¬ ¥  ² ¶ ´ « · ¥ ª ² ¸¹ º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ ¾ À Á ¼ Â Ã ÄÅ Æ Ç È É É Ê É Ë Ç Ê Ì Ë Í Î Ï É Í Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ô Í Ñ Í É Õ Ö × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú Û Ü Ý Þ ß Ü à à àÅ á â È Õ È ã ä å Í ä ä æ Ê Í ä Ì ç Ê Ö è é ã Ó Ë Í ê Ê Ò Í ë Û à ì Û Ú Û ì í Ü à à àÅ î ï Ê Ë É ã ä Î Ï É Í Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ô Í Ñ Í É Õ Ö × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú ì Ü ð ß ð Ü à à àÅ ñ ò È ó ã Ñ ã ã É Ì ô ä ê ã Ö Í Ï Ç Ï ã Ì Ü õ Ï Ò ã õ Ï Ò ã ç Ó Ê Ô Í Üï ã É Ù É Õ Ï É Ê Ï ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ Ü ã É Ì ò Ó Í Ö Õ Ô Ê Í ö ç Ó Ê Ô Í Ý Ü í ì Ý Þ Ú ì Ü Þ Û ë Ü à à àÅ ÷ ï ã É Ù É Õ Ï É Ê Ï å Í ä ä ø ð Ç Í é ã ù Ê ä Ê Õ ã Õ Ê Ï É × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú ì Û Ý Ü à à àÅ ú ï È É Ö Í Õ ê ä ã è Í ì Ü Þ í Ý Þ Ú í ë à Ü à à àÅ û å Í Ö Õ ã É Ì ô ã Ö Õ ü ý ã Ê Ù Ô Í í Ü Þ Ý Ý æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú Û Ü ì ð Ý Ü à à àÅ þ ÿ Ó ã É Ì Ù Ô Í É È Í ê Ê Ò Í ü Ò Õ Ê Ñ Ê � ã Õ Ê Ï É ð Ü � í Ý æ Í Í Õ × Ø Ù Ú Û à Ü à à àÅ � � Í É Õ È Ó ã ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ì Ü ë ð Ý æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú Ý í Þ Ü à à à� � � � � î 	 
 � � �  � � � � � � � � � ÷ þ þ � � � �� � º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ ¾ À Á ¼ Â Ã Ä Æ ì Û � Ê É è é ò ã Ö Õ Ð Ó Ï É õ Ó ã É Ö Ñ Ê Ö Ö Ê Ï É â ã Ê É ì ð Ü ð à à ì Û Ú ð Ü Þ ð í Ü à à à á ò Ï É Ö Õ Ó È è Õ ã É Í ö ö Í ä ä × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú � Û Ý Ü à à à î ò Ï È É Õ Ó ó ò ä È ù ç Ó Ê Ô Í Û Ü Û Ý à Þ Ú í ð ì Ü à à à ñ � Í Ê Ì Í ä ù Í Ó Ë Í Ó ê È Ñ Ò ï Õ ã Õ Ê Ï É Ç Í è Ï É Ö Õ Ó È è Õ Ê Ï É × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú � Û à Ü à à à ÷ ò ã É ã Ì ã ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ì Ü ð à à Þ Ú ð Ý Û Ü à à à ú � Ê Ï É ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ì Ü Û ß à æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ð à � Ü à à à û ê ä Í ã Ö ã É Õ Ù Ô Í É È Í ã É Ì ç ã ä ó Ç Ï ã Ì ì Ü � í Ý æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ë ß ß Ü à à à þ ò Ï É Ö Õ Ó È è Õ ã É Í ö Õ È Ó É Ï È Õ × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú ì Û ð Ü à à à � ç Í ä × Ï Ó Õ Í Ç Ï ã Ì � ù Í ä Ï ö Õ é Í Ù Ó ù Ï ä ã Ì ã Ç Í Ö Í Ó Ô Ï Ê Ó � ð ë Ý æ Í Í Õ ì Û Ú ì Ý Þ Ü à à à Æ � � Í Ó ã É Ï ç Ó Ê Ô Í ð à à æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ì Û Û Ü à à à Æ Æ ê ã Ó � Ù Ô Í É È Í ß Ý Ý æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú � � Ü à à à Æ á � ä ã É è é ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ã É Ì ï ã É Õ ã Ù É ã ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ì Ü à Û à æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ß ß ë Ü à à à Æ î � ã Ê Ó ö ã ó � ã É Í ì Ü Û Û à æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ß � Û Ü à à à Æ ñ Ù Ó ù Ï ä ã Ì ã Ç Í Ö Í Ó Ô Ï Ê Ó Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ô Í Ñ Í É Õ Ö × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú ì à Ü à à à Æ ÷ ï ã É Ù É Õ Ï É Ê Ï � Ï Ó Í ù ã ó Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ô Í Ñ Í É Õ Ö × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú Û à Ý Ü à à à Æ ú � Í Ê Ì Í ä ù Í Ó Ë Í Ó õ ã É � Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ï Ô Í Ñ Í É Õ Ö × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú Û Ý Ü à à à Æ û õ ã É � ï Í Ê Ö Ñ Ê è ô Ô ã ä È ã Õ Ê Ï É × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú Û Ý Ü à à à Æ þ � ê ï ò Ï É Ì Ê Õ Ê Ï É Ù Ö Ö Í Ö Ö Ñ Í É Õ × Ø Ù × Ø Ù Ú ì à Ü à à à Æ � ô Ñ Ê ä ó ï Õ Ó Í Í Õ ß Ý à æ Í Í Õ Þ Ú ì ì Ý Ü à à à� � � � � Æ � 	 
 � � �  � � � � � � � Æ � � ÷ ñ þ � � � �� � �  � � � � � � � � á � � Æ î ú � � � �



�� ����� � ��� � ���� ��� ��
��� �� �� �

�� � � � � ��� �

��

��

	 
� �  � �  � �
� ����� � �

� �� �� � � � �  � � !  "#$ � " %& ' ($ ) "& " � *+ � ,� - �  � . / # $ � "%& ' ($ ) "& " � * +0 1� 2 " � ! " / 3 " (  " (4� & ' - * . * � $ �
0 5� 6 " 7 8� ( � $ � *

0 � 1� � ( 3 $ / . ! . � " + " ( )$ � (
0 � 9� 2 " � ! " / 3 " (  " ( 8 . � :

0 � ; � - . � � � * $ � � $ < $ ( " 3 . =� ;� - . � � � *$ � � $ > " / / ? 10 @� A $ � + * (� B * 6 " 7 > " / /C D EF GHIJ
KLMN

OP
Q RSTU V WXY Z[\] ^_ ` a

Mb bc d e
fg h ijk l mn op qn op q

r qs p rt u vwr qs p r t u vw
r w q u w s x np y xr w q u w s x np y x

z {| |

z {}~ �
z { }~ �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���� �� � �� � � �

������  ¡¢£¤¥¦ §¨©ª

« ¬  ® ¯ ° ± ± ²

³ µ́ ¶· ¸¹ º »¼ ´ ¶ ½ ¾ µ́ º ¿ ·

À Á ¹ Â Ã¹ ¶ ¶ · ÄÅÆ Æ ¹ Æ Ç³È ¹

É ÉÊ ËÉÊ Ì Í Î ÏÐ Ñ
ÒÓ Ô Õ Ö× Ó ØÙ ÚÓ Ô Û ÔÓ Ü Ö ÝÞ ß Òà á Ô× Ó Þ ß â Þ Ô Öã ä â å âã æ Ù Ô ç Öè ãé Ò æ Òã êè ÝÓ Ô çÙ ëã ê ì Û å â í â ì î ïã ì å ÛÙ è ã â Þ Ô Ö ð Ù ë Ù è ãí â î ê ã â Þ Ô Ö Û ñ Ö è Ù ò ä à è ó ôà è ó õã â Þ Ô Ö ôà ÔÓ Ù ã â Þ Ô Öò î ñ Ù Ö ö Ù è Ü õã ì æ Û Ûã ÷ ø ëÓ è Ò Ý ÔÓ Ó Ý í Ù ë × à è Ý Ô Ö ù á Ýà ÔÞ ãÙ è Ü Ý ñÓ æ ê Ò é Þ Ó Ô Ûà ç ç áè Ö Ý Ú

úû üû ý þÿ� � � � �� � � �� � 	
 
 � � � � ��� �� � �  � �
 � �  � � � 
 ���� � � ��� �   ! �" � � �# � !$ % & � �� �' ( � � ) 
 � � �* +, � � � � � - � �* . �
 / /  � )  )0 1 � �* . �
 / /  � )  )2 3 1 � �* 4 & � � 5 � �� $ � 67 � � %# 89 �� � : 8 �$ ; � � � <$ � �=  � )   (  � -  � 	 
 
 � �  � >
 � =  � )   (  � -  �� � � � >
 � ? � � � >
 � .@ � � � � - . � ) -  >
 � � � ) )   A � �  >
 � � � - � �  	 
 
 � � � >
 � 

���� ���� �� ��� ���B C DE FG H I H JK H L K M K N O PG Q
I DE F G H I H J K H L K R O S S T UB VE WK H X J N Y Z J [ O \ R O S S ]̂_`ab c d

ef g h i j kl g m i n n o p q
rs t u v w v s t xy z { u | z z { z z } { t w ~ �y w { � � y z w { � � � y t ��� �� �� � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 

¡¢ £ ¤¥ ¦ §̈ £© ª¥ ¦ £ « «¥ ¬ ¥  ® «̄ ¢ £ °¥ «¥ ¬ § ±¥ ¬ ² § ³µ́¥ ¥ § ¶ ·̧ ¹ «¥ §¥ ¢ ¡¢ £ ¤¥ ¦ § º £ » § ¼½ ¾ ¿À Á Á Â Á Ã ¿ Â Ä Ã Å ÆÇ Á Å ÈÉ Ê ËÇ Ì ÅÉ Å Á ÍÎ Ï ÐÑ Ò Ó ÔÑ Õ Õ Õ½ Ð Ö À Í À × Ø Ù Å Ø Ø Ú Â Å Ø Ä Û Â Î Ü Ý × Ë Ã Å Þ Â Ê Å ß Ð Õ ¾ Ð à Ï Ð ¾ áÑ Õ Õ Õ½ Ô â Â Ã Á × Ø ÆÇ Á Å ÈÉ Ê ËÇ Ì ÅÉ Å Á ÍÎ Ï ¾Ñ ã Ô ãÑ Õ Õ Õ½ ã äÀ å ×É × × Á Ä æ Ø Þ × Î Å Ç ¿Ç × Ä Ñ çÇ Ê × çÇ Ê × Û Ë Â Ì Å Ñ â × Á½ Á ÍÇ Á Â Ç â Í Ë Å Å ÍÑ × Á Ä ä Ë Å Î Í Ì Â Å è Û Ë Â Ì Å Ò á ¾ Ò Ó à Ï ¾Ñ Ó Ð ßÑ Õ Õ Õ½ Ò â × Á ½ Á ÍÇ Á Â Ç é ã ¿ Å Ý × ê Â Ø Â Í × Í Â Ç Á Ï ¾ Ð ÒÑ Õ Õ Õ½ á â À Á Î Å Í Þ Ø × Ü Å ¾Ñ Ó á Ò Ó à Ï á ß ÕÑ Õ Õ Õ½ ß Ù Å Î Í × Á Ä æ × Î Í ë ì × Â ½ Ì Å Á À Å áÑ Ó Ò Ò Ó à Ï ÐÑ ¾ ã ÒÑ Õ Õ Õ½ Ó í Ë × Á Ä ½ Ì Å Á À Å Þ Â Ê Å ë Ê Í Â É Âî × Í Â Ç Á ãÑ ï á Ò Ï Ð ÕÑ Õ Õ Õ½ ï ð Å Á Í À Ë × â Í Ë Å Å Í ¾Ñ ß ã Ò Ó ñ Ï Ò á ÓÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ ¾ Ð à ä × Î Í È ËÇ Á ç Ë × Á Î É Â Î Î Â Ç Á Ö × Â Á ¾ ãÑ ã Õ Õ ¾ Ð à Ï ãÑ Ó ã áÑ Õ Õ Õò Ð äÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í × Á Å è è Å Ø Ø Ï ï Ð ÒÑ Õ Õ Õò Ô äÇ À Á Í Ë å ä Ø À ê Û Ë Â Ì Å ÐÑ Ð Ò Õ Ó à Ï á ã ¾Ñ Õ Õ Õò ã ó Å Â Ä Å Ø ê Å Ë Ã Å Ë Þ À É Ê â Í × Í Â Ç Á Ï ï Ð ÕÑ Õ Õ Õò Ò ä × Á × Ä × â Í Ë Å Å Í ¾Ñ ã Õ Õ Ó à Ï ã Ò ÐÑ Õ Õ Õò á ô Â Ç Á â Í Ë Å Å Í ¾Ñ Ð Ô Õ Ó à Ï ã Õ ïÑ Õ Õ Õò ß Þ Ø Å × Î × Á Í ½ Ì Å Á À Å × Á Ä Û × Ø å ¿Ç × Ä ¾Ñ ï á Ò Ó à Ï ß Ô ÔÑ Õ Õ Õò Ó äÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í × Á Å è ÍÀ Ë Á Ç À Í Ï ¾ Ð ãÑ Õ Õ Õò ï Û Å Ø õ Ç Ë Í Å ¿Ç × Ä ã ß Ò ¾ Ð à Ï ¾ Ò ÓÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ Õ ð Å Ë × Á Ç Û Ë Â Ì Å ã Õ Õ Ó à Ï ¾ Ð ÐÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ ¾ Þ × Ë ö ½ Ì Å Á À Å Ô Ò Ò Ó à Ï ï ïÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ Ð ò Ø × Á Ü Ý â Í Ë Å Å Í × Á Ä â × Á Í × ½ Á × â Í Ë Å Å Í ¾Ñ Õ Ð Õ Ó à Ï Ô Ô ßÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ Ô Ú × Â Ë è × å ô × Á Å ¾Ñ Ð Ð Õ Ó à Ï Ô ï ÐÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ ã ½ Ë ê Ç Ø × Ä × ¿ Å Î Å Ë ÌÇ Â Ë È É Ê ËÇ Ì ÅÉ Å Á ÍÎ Ï ¾ ÕÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ Ò â × Á ½ Á ÍÇ Á Â Ç Ú Ç Ë Å ê × å ÈÉ Ê ËÇ Ì ÅÉ Å Á ÍÎ Ï Ð Õ ÒÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ á ó Å Â Ä Å Ø ê Å Ë Ã Å Ë ç × Á ö ÈÉ Ê ËÇ Ì ÅÉ Å Á ÍÎ Ï Ð ÒÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ ß ç × Á ö â Å Â Î É Â Ü æ Ì × Ø À × Í Â Ç Á Ï Ð ÒÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ Ó ò Þ â äÇ Á Ä Â Í Â Ç Á ½ Î Î Å Î Î É Å Á Í Ï ¾ ÕÑ Õ Õ Õò ¾ ï æÉ Â Ø å â Í Ë Å Å Í Ô Ò Õ Ó à Ï ¾ ¾ ÒÑ Õ Õ Õ¾÷ Þ ËÇ ì Å Ü Í ÜÇ Î ÍÎ Â Á Ü Ø À Ä Å × Ò ø É × Ë ö À Ê Ç ù ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç Á Î À ê ÍÇ Í × Ø ÍÇ × Ü ÜÇ À Á Í ùÇ Ë À Á ö Á Ç è Á Â Í ÅÉ Î Á Ç ÍÂ Á Ü Ø À Ä Å Ä Â Á Í Ý Å ÜÇ Î Í Ç Ê Â Á Â Ç Á Ñ × Á Ä × Ð Ò ø ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç Á ÜÇ Á Í Â Á Ã Å Á Ü å ê × Î Å Ä Ç Á ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç ÁÎ À ê ÍÇ Í × Øú çÇ Í × Ø Ê ËÇ ì Å Ü Í ÜÇ Î ÍÎ Â Á Ü Ø À Ä Å × ¾ Õ ø × Ø Ø Ç è × Á Ü Å û Ç ù ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç Á ÍÇ Í × Ø ü ùÇ Ë Ê ËÇ ì Å Ü ÍÂÉ Ê Ø ÅÉ Å Á Í × Í Â Ç Á × Á Ä × ¾ Õ ø × Ø Ø Ç è × Á Ü Å û Ç ù ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç Á ÍÇ Í × Ø ü ùÇ Ë ÜÇ Á Î Í ËÀ Ü Í Â Ç Á Ê Ý × Î Å Î À Ê Ê Ç Ë Íú
ý þÿ �� � � � � � � � � �	


 ÿ �� � � � � � � � � �	



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  MICHAEL FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT – CASITAS WATER SYSTEM HYDRAULIC 
MODEL 

DATE: 11/14/18 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign the 
professional services agreement with Water System Consulting, Inc. (WSC) in the 
amount not to exceed $89,000.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On September 27, 2018, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was released to prepare a 
hydraulic model of the Casitas System. The hydraulic model will be used to simulate 
system operations during average and peak demands, identify potential hydraulic 
constraints, simulate short-term operational changes such as taking a pump station or 
reservoir out of service, and model connections between the Casitas and Ojai Water 
Systems. 
 
The RFP was sent to seven engineering firms. Five of the firms are currently performing 
work for the District through the on-call engineering services contracts. The other two 
firms have previously performed other work for the District. Two proposals were 
received. After staff’s careful qualification-based review and evaluation, WSC was 
selected as being the most responsive. WSC previously completed the Condition 
Based Assessment and Water Master Plan for the Ojai Water System, which included 
preparation of a hydraulic model of that system. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Funding for this project is included as part of the Casitas-Ojai system Interties project 
budget of $100,000 for FY 2018-19. 
 
Attachment: 
WSC Proposal to Develop the Casitas Water System Hydraulic Model 
 



P R O P O S A L  T O  D E V E L O P  T H E 

C A S I TA S  W A T E R  S Y S T E M  
HYDRAULIC  MODEL

O c t o b e r  2 6 ,  2 0 1 8



T A B L E  O F 

C O N T E N T S

2

10

3

1

13

16

17

18

C o n f l i c t s ,  A d d i t i o n a l  C o m m e n t s ,  a n d 
A c c e p ta n c e  o f  C o n t r a c t

R e q u e s t e d  R e v i s i o n s

A p p e n d i x  A :  R e s u m e s

P r o j e c t  E x p e r i e n c e

P r o j e c t  t e a m

S c o p e  o f  W o r k

C o v e r  L e t t e r

P r o j e c t  U n d e r s ta n d i n g



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 1

Dear Ms. Aranda, 
Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) is excited for the opportunity to present our proposal to develop the Casitas Water 
System Hydraulic Model for Casitas Municipal Water District (District). The District needs a hydraulic model to assist 
in system planning, identify hydraulic deficiencies, and evaluate merging the Casitas and Ojai water systems. The ideal 
consultant has a qualified and experience team that will provide responsive hydraulic modeling services while developing 
a quality hydraulic model.

WSC brings industry-leading expertise and direct experience developing the Ojai Water System Hydraulic Model as 
part of the Ojai Water System Master Plan. Our proposed team for this project includes the engineers responsible 
for that project. Their previous experience and the knowledge gained during that project will create opportunities to 
increase the value of the Casitas Water System Hydraulic Model because we already are familiar with the District’s 
staff, system, and preferences. We will be able to seamlessly build upon our previous work to integrate the Casitas 
and Ojai water system hydraulic models. 

We believe that our team is best qualified and prepared to ease the burden on District staff while successfully creating a 
comprehensive hydraulic model of the District’s entire water distribution system. Our approach to achieve key project 
objectives includes:

Hitting the Ground Running. Our recent, on-going work providing master planning and hydraulic modeling 
services to the District will reduce the time and resources required during project kickoff and data collection. We 
know your system and preferences, and propose to build on the Ojai Water System Model which our proposed 
project team developed.

Responsive Service and High-Quality Deliverables. We see the District as a strategic and valued client. Our team 
is dedicated to being a trusted partner that delivers on promises and creates high-quality work products that better 
position the District for its short-and long-term planning goals.

Leveraging Existing Tools, Methodologies, & Experience. WSC’s experience with water system hydraulic modeling 
and the District gives us the tools, methodologies, and insight required to produce a hydraulic model that the 
District has confidence in.

WSC is willing to accept the terms and conditions of the Agreement for Engineering Services. However, we 
respectfully request the District consider the proposed revisions to the Agreement included in our proposal. WSC is 
currently under contract with the District and we are confident we can efficiently come to a mutual agreement on 
the provided terms.

If you have questions about any aspect of this proposal, please feel free to contact WSC’s proposed Project Manager, 
Ms. Kirsten Plonka, at (858) 397-2617, ext. 304 (kplonka@wsc-inc.com), or QA/QC Engineer and Chief Operating 
Officer, Mr. Jeroen Olthof, at (619) 246-1258 (jolthof@wsc-inc.com). Thank you for your consideration, and we look 
forward to your response.

S I N C E R E L Y ,
W A T E R  S Y S T E M S  C O N S U L T I N G ,  I N C .

J U L I A  A R A N D A ,  P E W A T E R  S Y S T E M S 
C O N S U L T I N G ,  I N C .

P R O P O S A L  T O 
P R E P A R E  T H E

Casitas Water System 

Hydraulic Model

Engineering Manager
Casitas Municipal Water District
1055 Ventura Avenue
Oak View, CA 93022

805 Aerovista Place, Suite 201
San Luis Obispo, CA 93405
(805) 457-8833 | Expectwsc.com 

K I R S T E N  P L O N K A ,  P E
P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R

J E R O E N  O L T H O F ,  P E ,  M S ,  M B A
Q A / Q C  E N G I N E E R  /  C H I E F 

O P E R A T I N G  O F F I C E R



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 2

The District maintains a potable water supply and distribution transmission system to deliver water to approximately 
60,000 residential, commercial, and agricultural customers within its service area. The District recently built a Geographic 
Information System (GIS) database of its distribution and transmission systems and constructed a hydraulic model of the 
Ojai Water System, which it acquired in 2017. The District wishes to build a new, accurate hydraulic model of the Casitas 
System and merge the model with its existing Ojai Water System hydraulic model. The combined hydraulic model will be 
an invaluable tool for the District and it can be used for a variety of purposes, including:

 ҋ Simulate system operations during average and peak demand periods;

 ҋ Identify potential hydraulic constraints;

 ҋ Evaluate potential system improvements;

 ҋ Anticipate future capacity constraints due to future growth or connections to new supply sources before they 
occur;

 ҋ Simulate short-term operational changes such as taking a pump station, reservoir, or pipeline out of service for 
repairs or maintenance;

 ҋ Model connections and water transfer between the Casitas and Ojai Water Systems;

 ҋ Investigate system water quality, including system water age and trace chemical analyses.

The Casitas Water System Hydraulic Model RFP’s Scope of Work provides a robust framework to deliver a reliable and 
calibrated hydraulic model. WSC’s approach to achieve the Scope of Work is summarized below and is described in more 
detail in the following sections with enhanced scope recommendations provided for relevant tasks.

AN EFFECTIVE APPROACH TO PROJECT MANAGEMENT
WSC’s proposed project manager, Kirsten Plonka, has a successful history managing projects in both the public and 
private sector as a consultant. She managed the Ojai Water System Condition Based Assessment and Water Master 
Plan with the District. Through that project,  she developed relationships with staff, learned operational preferences, 
developed an understanding of local public opinion, and gained knowledge about the available data and formats from 
the District’s system. Kirsten’s first-hand knowledge from the Ojai System Model and Master Plan will help her guide 
WSC’s efforts to meet the District’s needs in a cost-effective manner. There are several key strategies that help successful 
delivery of projects, including:

project understanding

CLEAR LINES OF 
COMMUNICATION

Kirsten will be the primary point 
of contact for this work. She will 
draw on members of the WSC 

team to meet the needs of each 
task in a timely and cost-effective 

manner. Heather Freed will be 
an additional point of contact 

for the District. Both Kirsten and 
Heather have worked directly 
with District Staff on the Ojai 

System Master Plan.

DEEP TECHNICAL 
UNDERSTANDING 

Members of WSC’s project 

team have more than 25 

years of combined experience 

performing hydraulic modeling 

of water systems, and have 

successfully completed more 

than 100 modeling projects.

PROJECT CONTROL 
SYSTEMS

Kirsten will actively monitor the 
progress of each task against the 

budget and schedule. She will 
use WSC’s project management 
and control systems to generate 

monthly progress reports 
documenting work completed 

and spending compared to 
budget.

•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 3

• Use project management tools 
to monitor work progress and 
expenditures 

• Prepare invoices and progress reports

• Develop and maintain a project 
schedule

• Perform Quality Control activities, 
including independent review of all 
deliverables

• Prepare materials for and conduct 
monthly in-person progress meetings 
with District staff to review project status. 
Meetings are expected to include: a kick-

DELIVERABLES:
• Agendas and materials 

for meetings, including 
meeting notes and decision 
documentation

HYDRAULIC 
MODEL CREATION 

& DEMAND 
ALLOCATION

DATA  
COLLECTION

STEADY 
STATE MODEL 
CALIBRATION

HYDRAULIC 
EVALUATION 
& TECHNICAL 

MEMORANDUM (TM)

KICK-OFF  
MEETING WORKING MODEL AND DEMAND 

ALLOCATION REVIEW MEETING

HYDRANT FLOW TESTING MEETING & 
PRELIMINARY CALIBRATION WORKSHOP

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT1

TASK

Provide data request to the District and track 
receipt of requested items. Data sources are 
expected to include:

• The District’s GIS database or shapefiles of 
the main system’s water infrastructure

• Record drawings of key facilities such 
as the treatment plant, reservoirs, pump 
stations and groundwater wells

• Pump curves and recent pump tests

• SCADA records and control set points

• Water consumption data from the 
District’s billing database

• Monthly and annual water production data

Build the Casitas System Model within the 
existing Ojai System Model. Use “Active 
Network” features to maintain ability to 
model systems separately if needed. Spatially 
allocate system demands and load into the 
hydraulic model. Major sub-tasks include:
• Build the model network by using the GIS 

Gateway Tool to import data from the 
District GIS database

• Troubleshoot network connectivity, make 
model corrections, and log changes for 
future incorporation into the District’s GIS 
Database

• Analyze consumption data from the billing 
database to develop average day demands 
and peaking factors 

• Assign demands and patterns to model 
nodes

• Create control rules to simulate system 
operations

• Run the model for steady-state and EPS 
conditions

Steady State Calibration subtasks include:
• Prepare and execute hydrant testing plan with 

District staff and operators
• Compare the model results to observed 

results collected during hydrant testing and 
adjust the model to match field collected data

Perform hydraulic evaluation and summarize 
model development, demand allocation, 
calibration in a technical memorandum (TM). 
Subtasks include:
• Evaluate system pressures, fire flow, and 

velocity under steady-state conditions. 
Identify deficient locations and prepare 
maps.

• Evaluate system water age using EPS 
conditions under a range of demand 
alternatives. Prepare a water age map, 
identifying locations with the potential for 
long water age.

• Summarize model development, calibration 
and evaluation in a draft TM. Incorporate 
District comments in the Final TM.

DELIVERABLES:
• Itemized data request for data sources to be 

used in model construction provided at the 
kick-off meeting

BENEFITS TO THE DISTRICT:
• WSC will review all data prior to model 

build and identify missing data critical to 
following tasks

DELIVERABLES:
• One calibrated and fully functional 

InfoWater Model that includes both the 
Casitas System and the Ojai System

BENEFITS TO THE DISTRICT:
• WSC built the Ojai System Model and 

understands its intricacies. A deep 
understanding of both models will allow 
for smooth integration

DELIVERABLES:
• Draft Model Development, Calibration, and 

Hydraulic Evaluation TM

• Final TM incorporating District comments

BENEFITS TO THE DISTRICT:
• WSC is already up to speed on state and 

local criteria from the Ojai System Master 
Plan and can import the criteria into the 
combined models to evaluate the main 
Casitas distribution system

BENEFITS TO THE DISTRICT:
• WSC built the Ojai System Hydraulic 

Model and can carryover model building 
assumptions when developing this hydraulic 
model to ensure seamless merging of the 
two models 

BENEFITS TO THE DISTRICT:
• WSC provided oversight during hydrant 

testing for the Ojai System. Existing 
relationships will allow for seamless hydrant 
testing within main Casitas System

FINAL CALIBRATION WORKSHOP

EPS 
CALIBRATION

Extended Period Simulation (EPS) Calibration 
subtasks includes:
• Analyze SCADA records to develop diurnal 

demand curves 
• Calibrate model by adjusting controls and 

diurnal demand patterns until modeled tank 
patterns and levels match observed data 

DELIVERABLES:
• Graphs that visually compare model results 

to observed data for the model calibration 
workshop

• Draft model development and calibration 
TM to be incorporated in Final TM

INCORPORATE OJAI SYSTEM HYDRAULIC MODEL

Activate the Ojai System Hydraulic Model in the 
base model scenario to create a functional single 
model. Subtasks include:
• Connect the two distribution systems through 

two existing interconnections
• As required, merge data sets to create a single 

average day, maximum day, fire flow, and 
EPS scenario that can run with both systems 
activated 

• Create query sets of the Ojai System Model 
and Casitas System Model that can activate 
and deactivate each system

MODEL IMPORT REVIEW MEETING

DRAFT TM REVIEW WORKSHOP

off meeting, a working model and demand 
allocation review meeting, a hydrant 
flow testing meeting, a preliminary 
calibration workshop, a final calibration 
workshop, an Ojai System Model Import 
Review Meeting, and a Draft TM Review 
Workshop

• Review model functionality and run the 
combined model for steady-state and EPS 
conditions

2
TASK

3
TASK

4
TASK

7
TASK

5
TASK

6
TASK

M e t h o d o l o g y

•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 4

•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •

WSC’S MODEL DEVELOPMENT APPROACH ENGAGES DISTRICT 
STAFF THROUGHOUT THE PROCESS TO PRODUCE A FUNCTIONAL 

AND RELIABLE TOOL
As operators of the water system and users of the model, District staff can provide valuable input to this process and we look 
forward to collaborating with you to further develop the approach for model development. It is critical to actively engage key 
staff and operators in the process through workshops. Leveraging their experience and knowledge of the water system will 
allow the development of a valuable and realistic hydraulic model. Based on our experience with similar projects, through 
the Ojai System Condition Based 
Assessment and Water Master Plan, 
and our thorough understanding of 
the District’s objectives, we have 
summarized the key decisions that 
WSC and the District will need to make 
during model development to ensure 
that the resulting model is a functional 
tool that meets the District’s needs. 
These are discussed further in the 
following subsections.

LEVERAGE KNOWLEDGE OF THE OJAI SYSTEM MODEL TO 
DEVELOP THE CASITAS SYSTEM MODEL TO SIMPLIFY MODEL 

INTEGRATION
WSC worked with the District to build, calibrate, and evaluate the Ojai System hydraulic model. The knowledge of the inputs, 
assumptions, and data used to construct the Ojai System model can be leveraged to develop the Casitas System model so the 
two systems can be seamlessly merged together into a single working model. To minimize errors down the road combining the 
system models, WSC recommends:

MAINTAIN MODELING SOFTWARE AND COORDINATE SYSTEMS. Constructing the Casitas System model 
in InfoWater using the same coordinate system as the Ojai System model will avoid spatial conflicts when connecting the 
two models. The Casitas shapefiles were provided by the District and are currently projected in the same coordinate system 
as the Ojai System model and are ready for model development. InfoWater is recommended because the Ojai System 
Model is in InfoWater software and because this software can easily be exported to EPANET format and uploaded into a 
Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) software for operations maintenance and management. 

UTILIZE THE SAME DATA, DATA FORMATS, AND ASSUMPTIONS. WSC will use the same data and data 
formats when possible, and as applicable, for both system models. This includes using the same elevation data used for 
both systems, modeling wells similarly as reservoirs and pumps, using recent pump test data to model pump controls or 
pump curves as available, importing hydrants and hydrant laterals so fire flows are based on actual hydrant locations, and 
maintaining consistent assumptions within both models. Upon initial review of the Casitas System shapefiles, there is about 
9.5 miles of pipeline indicated as having a zero-inch diameter. Many of these pipelines are short laterals and located within 
a facility site, such as a tank site, and include yard and drain pipes, but some locations include mainline connections within 
the distribution system. We recommend that data gaps be identified early, and we understand that as-builts and record 
drawings are not always available. In the Ojai System model, unknown pipe diameter between two spans of pipe with the 
same diameter was assumed to also be the same diameter. For short laterals and yard piping within a facility of unknown 
diameter, a placeholder of 5.99 inches was used, as 6-inch pipe is a common pipe size in the Ojai System. The 5.99 inches is 
used because in the model it is hydraulically similar to a 6-inch pipe but is an indication that the pipe diameter was assumed. 
We will work with the District to come up with similar assumptions that may be required as a placeholder for missing 
information in the Casitas System model.

WSC will actively engage key 
District staff, including operators, 
in the model development process 
through workshops and review of 

the working model.  Leveraging 
their experience will help capture 

institutional knowledge and support 
the development of an accurate and 

reliable water model.



•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 5

CONSTRUCT THE CASITAS MODEL WITHIN THE EXISTING OJAI MODEL.  We recommend building 
the Casitas model directly within the Ojai System model to maintain existing scenarios and data sets. This approach will 
prevent future conflicts that would occur merging two separate models after both are built, such as unique ID conflicts, 
data loss, and scenario management issues. During model construction, average day demand sets can be updated to include 
Casitas System demands, creating a single average day demand set rather than two average day demands sets for both 
systems. Query sets can be created to deactivate the Ojai System and the Casitas System, so the model can function as the 
combined system or with the Ojai or Casitas Systems alone. During model construction, we will deactivate the Ojai System 
model so development will be focused solely on the Casitas System model. After calibration of the Casitas System Model, 
the integration of the two systems will simply include activating both systems and modeling the two existing connections. 
Through this method, all data in both systems will be preserved and easily integrated. 

A MODEL WITH A 1:1 RELATIONSHIP WITH GIS WILL SIMPLIFY 
FUTURE MODEL UPDATES

An inventory of current infrastructure was 
provided by the District via shapefiles. WSC 
implemented use of the InfoWater GIS Gateway 
tool, allowing us to set up a “cluster” that defines 
how the information from the data source, such 
as shapefiles, relates to the information in the 
hydraulic model. Using the GIS Gateway, we can 
maintain a 1:1 relationship between GIS features 
and model features for naming conventions 
and data mining. These clusters can then be 
stored and re-used as needed to keep the model 
synchronized with changes in the GIS database. 

The District has implemented a geometric network 
within its GIS shapefiles, and the data generally 
appears to be complete.  One issue that will come up during model construction is the breakpoints of mains.  InfoWater uses a 
network of nodes and links, with every link connecting two nodes. However, some mains do not have a fitting or valve at their 
endpoint, so they will not have the necessary node when imported into InfoWater. In some areas, new fittings may need to 
be added to the GIS shapefiles to create this connectivity. WSC can make these changes in InfoWater during construction of 

There are two functioning interconnections 
between the Casitas and Ojai Water Systems. 

The combined system model can be used to 
identify additional interconnections or evaluate 

a full integration of the two water systems.

The InfoWater GIS Gateway allows us to use clusters to efficiently 
transfer data from the District’s GIS shapefiles to InfoWater fields.  

Clusters use GIS IDs to create a 1:1 relationship to facilitate 
future updates.



•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 6

the model if desired; however, it would be ideal to add the necessary fittings to the GIS shapefiles so that no additional manual 
updates are needed during future model updates. The Ojai model and shapefiles were developed simultaneously, so the GIS 
shapefiles and model currently have a 1:1 relationship. 

A related issue is the connection of fire hydrants to the network. It appears that some hydrants in the GIS shapefiles have a 
lateral that connects it with the main. In most cases, the main is not broken with a fitting at the point where the lateral connects 
to the main. It is not absolutely necessary to include the hydrants as nodes in the model; similar hydraulic results would be 
obtained using a fire flow simulation at the closest model node. However, including the hydrants as nodes in the model would 
make it easier to interpret available fire flow information and would be consistent with the Ojai System model which uses the 
hydrants for the fire flow analysis.

A ROBUST DEMAND ASSIGNMENT STRATEGY PROVIDES 
FLEXIBILITY TO ADAPT TO FUTURE CHANGES

Whereas traditional modeling techniques allocate water demands by zone or by land use area, WSC prefers to perform a much 
more granular analysis, evaluating demand patterns down to individual customers and parcels. This approach allows WSC to 
precisely account for the District’s current demands and to develop a sophisticated understanding of the spatially allocated 
projected demands. The InfoWater Demand Allocator Tool can then be used to load modeled demands and assign them to the 
appropriate water main.

WSC can make necessary 
connectivity edits either 

in the new model or in the 
District’s GIS to maintain 

a 1:1 relationship with the 
model and eliminate manual 

changes for future model 
updates.

Mains are not typically 
broken at hydrant laterals in 
GIS.  Fittings can be added in 
GIS to easily import hydrants 
into the model so that fire 
flows can be based on actual 
hydrant locations

Some mains in GIS do not 
have valves or fittings at 
endpoints; these will need to 
be added in GIS or the model

Production and spatial demands can change year to year based on rainfall and groundwater 
availability. During dry years, less groundwater is available to agricultural users and other 
agencies so they must purchase more surface water from the District. WSC recommends 

evaluating average day spatial demands under a dry year and a wet year to load in the model.



•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 7

Demands in the Casitas distribution system can vary significantly year to year based on rainfall, and because a high number 
of agricultural users and other agencies depend on groundwater but supplement with surface water from the District during 
dry years. WSC recommends using historic consumption and demand data to compare spatially allocated demands from high 
demand and low demand years. If there is a significant variation in the spatial demands, WSC will work with the District to 
average spatial demands and create a single average day demand loading or create multiple spatial demand alternatives for 
high and low rainfall years. Global peaking factors can then be used to model maximum day demands and peak hour demands.

WSC also recommends the District update the spatially allocated demands in the Ojai system. The demands in the existing Ojai 
system model were developed using November and December 2017 consumption data and may not reflect average annual 
spatial demands. The District will have a full year of consumption data for the Ojai Water System by November 2018 that can 
be used to update the Ojai system demands for the most accurate modeling.

EFFECTIVE MODEL CALIBRATION BUILDS CONFIDENCE IN 
RESULTS

WSC believes that calibration is not a one size fits all process. We can leverage existing historical flow data and SCADA data to 
do an initial calibration of the model. WSC will work with the District to identify priority areas and key infrastructure to prepare 
a hydrant testing plan that minimizes field testing and focuses calibration to meet overall accuracy tests. WSC will work with 
the District to identify locations for temporary data loggers and fire flow hydrant testing in the same manner that was done 
for the Ojai system to ensure consistency.  WSC has extensive experience overseeing hydrant testing with operations staff for 
model calibration. With WSC in the field, we can provide quality control of data collected and note system conditions during 
hydrant testing to get the best data for model calibration. The results of hydrant testing can be used to calibrate the hydraulic 
model by adjusting pipe roughness factors, pump or valve set points, or system operational rules so that the calculated model 
results more closely match observed conditions. District staff and operator input will be critical during this process to ensure the 
model predictions closely align with true system operations. WSC has already performed hydrant testing with District Staff and 
proposes the same team that performed hydrant testing in the Ojai system to perform hydrant testing for the Casitas system.

Data collected during hydrant testing with District 
Staff and SCADA records were used to calibrate 

the Ojai System hydraulic model under steady state 
and EPS conditions. WSC will seek to calibrate the 
model until pressures are within 5 psi of recorded 

static pressures and 10 psi of recorded residual 
pressures during hydrant testing, resulting in a 

model with a high level of confidence.

Steady state models are useful in predicting system pressures, available fire flow, and evaluating “what if” scenarios when a pipe 
segment is closed or other operational changes, but they cannot evaluate system fluctuations over time. An extended period 
simulation (EPS) model can be used to model tank filling and emptying patterns, model water age in the distribution system, and 
analyze system operations over time. 

WSC will use detailed SCADA records including production data, tank levels, and pump station operation over time to develop 
diurnal demand patterns.  Diurnal demand patterns can be developed for any system or sub-part of the system; in the Ojai 
System model they are defined by pressure zones. Because demands can vary significantly based on customer type and season, 
WSC will perform an initial review of provided SCADA data to recommend the number of diurnal curves needed to calibrate 
the EPS model under average day and maximum day demands. The diurnal demand patterns will be loaded into the model, and 
modeled tank levels will be compared to the recorded tank levels in the SCADA system. Pump and valve control and diurnal 
demand patterns will be adjusted as needed until modeled tank levels match tank levels from the SCADA records.  WSC’s 
proposed calibration steps are listed below:



•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 8

1 2 3
CALIBRATION 
PREPARATION

• Build model structure and 
confirm connectivity

• Develop Hydrant Testing 
Plan with District Staff 
focusing on priority areas 

• Execute and oversee 
hydrant testing with 
operation staff and collect 
necessary data to complete 
steady state calibration

• Request and review SCADA 
data and recommend the 
method for developing and 
loading diurnal patterns for 
EPS calibration

STEADY STATE 
CALIBRATION

• Create hydrant testing 
scenarios in the hydraulic 
model 

• Compare static pressures to 
observed pressures. Adjust 
model configuration, tank 
levels, and pump operation 
to match data collected in 
the field

• Adjust pipe roughness 
coefficients and minor loss 
coefficients if observed 
head losses are different 
than predicted by the 
model

EPS  
CALIBRATION

• Develop diurnal demand 
patterns based on pressure 
zone, customer type, and/or 
seasonality

• Adjust pump and valve 
settings and controls, and 
diurnal demand patterns as 
necessary, until tank fill and 
empty patterns and modeled 
water levels match SCADA 
data

• Work with operations staff 
to review these changes 
and verify that they are 
consistent with their system 
knowledge

 UNDERSTANDING OF DISTRICT PREFERENCE AND LOCAL 
REQUIREMENTS MEANS NO LEARNING CURVE

WSC has performed a hydraulic evaluation of the Ojai System model and can use the same system criteria to perform a 
hydraulic evaluation of the Casitas System. The hydraulic evaluation of the Casitas System is expected to include a pressure 
analysis, available fire flow evaluation, velocity analysis, and water age analysis. We will identify locations that may not meet 
system requirements and pipelines that are undersized, and the District will be able to use the information and the model to 
evaluate solutions to improve the existing deficiencies. 

WSC can use the same 
evaluation criteria from the 
Ojai System Water Master 

Plan to evaluate the Casitas 
System. We will prepare 
maps similar to those in 

the Ojai Water Master Plan 
to identify locations with 

capacity constraints or 
that do not meet current 

standards



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 9

ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Board Notice to Proceed 0 days Wed 11/28/18 Wed 11/28/18

2 Task 1 Project Management 143 days Wed 11/28/18 Fri 6/14/19

3 Project Management 143 days Wed 11/28/18 Fri 6/14/19

4 QA/QC 143 days Wed 11/28/18 Fri 6/14/19

5 Meetings 130 days Mon 12/3/18 Mon 6/3/19

6 Kickoff Meeting 0 days Mon 12/3/18 Mon 12/3/18

7 Progress Meeting 1: Working Model Review 
& Hydrant Flow Testing Meeting

0 days Mon 1/28/19 Mon 1/28/19

8 Progress Meeting 2: Preliminary Calibration 
Workshop

0 days Mon 3/4/19 Mon 3/4/19

9 Progress Meeting 3: Final Calibration 
Workshop

0 days Mon 4/1/19 Mon 4/1/19

10 Progress Meeting 4: Model Import and 
Review Meeting

0 days Mon 4/29/19 Mon 4/29/19

11 Progress Meeting 5: Draft TM Review 
Workshop

0 days Mon 6/3/19 Mon 6/3/19

12 Task 2 Data Collection 20 days Mon 12/3/18 Fri 12/28/18

13 Prepare Data Request 5 days Mon 12/3/18 Fri 12/7/18

14 Review and Incorporate 15 days Mon 12/10/18 Fri 12/28/18

15 Task 3 Model Creation and Demand Allocation 20 days Mon 12/31/18 Fri 1/25/19

16 Build Infrastructure and Trouble‐Shoot 10 days Mon 12/31/18 Fri 1/11/19

17 Demand Allocation 10 days Mon 1/14/19 Fri 1/25/19

18 Task 4 Steady State Calibration 35 days Mon 1/14/19 Fri 3/1/19

19 Hydrant Testing Plan 10 days Mon 1/14/19 Fri 1/25/19

20 Hydrant Testing 5 days Mon 1/28/19 Fri 2/1/19

21 Steady State Model Calibration 20 days Mon 2/4/19 Fri 3/1/19

22 Task 5 EPS Calibration 20 days Mon 3/4/19 Fri 3/29/19

23 Diurnal Demands and EPS Calibration 20 days Mon 3/4/19 Fri 3/29/19

24 Task 6. Incorporate Ojai System Model 20 days Mon 4/1/19 Fri 4/26/19

25 Activate Ojai Model and Trouble‐Shoot 20 days Mon 4/1/19 Fri 4/26/19

26 Task 7 Hydraulic Evaluation and Technical 
Memorandum 

35 days Mon 4/29/19 Fri 6/14/19

27 Hydraulic Evaluation 15 days Mon 4/29/19 Fri 5/17/19

28 Draft TM 10 days Mon 5/20/19 Fri 5/31/19

29 Final TM 10 days Mon 6/3/19 Fri 6/14/19

11/28

12/3

1/28

3/4

4/1

4/29

6/3

11/18 11/25 12/2 12/9 12/16 12/23 12/30 1/6 1/13 1/20 1/27 2/3 2/10 2/17 2/24 3/3 3/10 3/17 3/24 3/31 4/7 4/14 4/21 4/28 5/5 5/12 5/19 5/26 6/2 6/9 6/16 6
ber December January February March April May June

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration‐only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start‐only

Finish‐only

Deadline

Progress

Casitas Water System 
Hydraulic Model
10/26/2018

PROJECT SCHEDULE
To allow time for the District to compile data, the first progress meeting is scheduled for 6-8 weeks after the Kickoff Meeting.

•  P R O J E C T  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  &  S C O P E  O F  W O R K  •



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 10

WSC’s proposed Project Manager, Kirsten Plonka, will serve as the primary point of contact for the District. Kirsten specializes in 
project management and hydraulic modeling of water distribution systems. She is supported by an experienced project team which 
includes Principal in Charge, Joshua Reynolds, a skilled engineer with a background in hydraulic modeling and analysis.  
Our team is working with the District on the Condition Assessment and Master Plan of the Ojai Water System. Our work, established 
relationships, and experience on this project will save Casitas staff time and resources on tasks such as data requests. WSC has 
extensive experience developing water system hydraulic models and is prepared to leverage the experience and tools, including using 
InfoWater, to provide a comprehensive hydraulic model.
The key members of WSC’s proposed team will not be substituted with other personnel without the District’s prior approval. Below 
is WSC’s organizational chart for this project. Information and justification as why each member is included in our team is included in 
the following pages and in resumes in Appendix A.

WSC’s team has 
completed nearly 150 

hydraulic models

Providing strategic 
communications 

and/or stakeholder 
coordination to more 

than 11 agencies

Established internal 
QA/QC processes and 

skilled staff produce 
professional and 

defensible deliverables

WSC’s team is functionally organized to take advantage of the strengths 
of each of our expert staff members, while keeping the structure 
streamlined to maintain efficiency, quality, and accountability.

HYDRAULIC MODELING LEAD
Heather Freed, PE, MS

GIS & MAPPING SUPPORT
Spencer Waterman

PROJECT MANAGER
Kirsten Plonka, PE

PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE
Joshua Reynolds, PE, MS

QA/QC
Jeroen Olthof, PE, MS, MBA

Project Team



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 11

•  P R O J E C T  T E A M  •

P R I N C I PA L  I N  C H A R G E
Mr. Reynolds has 18 years of experience providing hydraulic analysis, master 
planning, and capacity assessment services. His strong combination of modeling 
and design experience enables him to assist in the development and prioritization 
of realistic and operator- friendly projects. He excels at providing thorough QA/
QC support for hydraulic modeling projects.

P R O J E C T  E X P E R I E N C E :
• Victorville Water District, Water District Master Plan Update 2016, 

Victorville, CA. QA/QC. Preparing an update to the District’s drinking water 
production and distribution system master plan, including updates to existing 
water InfoWater hydraulic model. 

• City of Santa Maria, 2012 Utility Master Plan Update, Santa Maria, 
CA. Project Manager. Managed the assessment of the City’s water and 
wastewater collection system capacities, and development of a prioritized, 
risk-based capital improvement plan for the utilities, as well as development 
of a new water model in InfoWater.

• City of Pismo Beach, 2018 Water Master Plan Update, Pismo Beach, CA. 
Project Manager. Managed the creation and calibration of an all-pipes, 
spatially allocated demand hydraulic model of the City’s water distribution 
system as part of a master plan update. The model was used to evaluate 
capacity limitations and optimize operations. 

Joshua Reynolds, PE, MS

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS:
PE – Civil, CA, No. C65400

TITLE:
Senior Engineer V

OFFICE LOCATION:
San Luis Obispo, CA

P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R
Ms. Plonka brings more than 15 years of experience in the hydraulic modeling 
and master planning of water and recycled water systems. She specializes in 
project management, hydraulic modeling, feasibility studies, infrastructure and 
water resource planning studies, and master planning. Her experience includes 
database development and integration of geographic information systems (GIS) 
with hydraulic models, recycled water customer databases, and asset databases.

P R O J E C T  E X P E R I E N C E :
• Casitas Municipal Water District, Condition Assessment and Master Plan, 

Ojai, CA. Project Manager. Managing the development, calibration, and 
utilization of a hydraulic model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets 
to improve system operations and CIP development as part of a condition-
based assessment and Water Master Plan.

• Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, 
OR. Project Engineer. Developing a new hydraulic model in InfoWater based 
on the District’s detailed and updated GIS database as part of a Master Plan 
Update which will consider future water service commitments and build-out. 

• Otay Water District, As-Needed Hydraulic Modeling Services, Spring 
Valley, CA. Project Engineer. Providing as-needed services for computerized 
InfoWater hydraulic models to manage the District’s potable water 
distribution, recycled water distribution, and wastewater collection pipe 
networks.

Kirsten Plonka, PE

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS:
PE – Civil, CA, No. C70746

TITLE:
Senior Engineer III

OFFICE LOCATION:
San Diego, CA



Jeroen Olthof, PE, MBA, MS

Q A / Q C  | Mr. Olthof has more than 25 years of planning and 
design experience specializing in hydraulic modeling, master 
planning, and feasibility studies. He has completed more 
than 30 master plans and 125 hydraulic modeling projects 
during his career. Jeroen is nationally recognized as an 
industry-leader in the hydraulic modeling of pipe networks, 
condition assessment, GIS integration, and data analysis and 
management.
P R O J E C T  E X P E R I E N C E :
• Casitas Municipal Water District, Condition Assessment and Master Plan, Ojai, CA. 

Hydraulic Analysis Lead. Developing, calibrating, and utilizing the hydraulic model of 
the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to conduct a condition-based assessment 
and improve system operations and CIP development.

• City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Hydraulic Analysis Lead. 
Leading an analysis that addresses both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation 
and replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure by converting existing H2ONet 
model to InfoWater. 

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS:
PE – Civil, CA, No. C58597

TITLE:
Senior Engineer V

OFFICE LOCATION:
San Diego, CA

Heather Freed, PE, MS

H y d r a u l i c  M o d e l i n g  L e a d  | Ms. Freed is a professional 
engineer who specializes in hydraulic modeling, condition 
assessment, and master planning. Her experience includes 
evaluating hydraulic measures including headloss through 
pipes, hydraulic jumps, and groundwater pumping. Her 
experience includes groundwater contamination, water 
chemistry and water quality measurements, and climate 
change services. 
P R O J E C T  E X P E R I E N C E :
• Casitas Municipal Water District, Condition Assessment and Master Plan, Ojai, CA. 

Project Engineer. Evaluating production and consumption data and recommending 
improvements necessary to maintain a safe and reliable level of services for the Ojai 
system. 

• City of Pismo Beach, 2018 Water Master Plan Update, Pismo Beach, CA. Project 
Engineer. Created and calibrated an all-pipes, spatially allocated demand hydraulic 
model of the City’s water distribution system as part of a master plan update. The model 
was used to evaluate capacity limitations and optimize operations.

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS:
PE – Civil, CA, No. C89406

TITLE:
Assistant Engineer

OFFICE LOCATION:
San Luis Obispo, CA

Spencer Waterman

G I S  &  M a p p i n g  S u p p o r t  |  Mr. Waterman is an  
experienced planner who specializes in water systems 
planning, mapping, and GIS. His experience includes 
providing GIS and data management to support InfoWater 
modeling, as well as preparing Water Supply Assessments. He 
is familiar with the District through his work on the Condition 
Assessment and Master Plan project.
P R O J E C T  E X P E R I E N C E :
• Casitas Municipal Water District, Condition Assessment and Master Plan, Ojai, CA. 

Staff Planner. Created production and demand projections using data from the District, 
which included updating GIS shapefiles.

• City of Victorville, On-Call Water Modeling, Victorville, CA. Staff Planner. Provided GIS 
and data management to support GIS-based InfoWater modeling, Feasibility Studies, 
and Water Supply Assessments.

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS:

TITLE:
Associate Planner II

OFFICE LOCATION:
San Luis Obispo, CA

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 12

•  P R O J E C T  T E A M  •



WATER SYSTEM MASTER PLAN & CONDITION BASED 
ASSESSMENT

Casitas Municipal Water District

The District recently acquired the operating assets of Golden 
State Water Company’s water system within the City of Ojai. 
At the time of the acquisition, the District did not have a 
full understanding of the condition and operation of the Ojai 
system. WSC developed a new hydraulic model of the system 
in InfoWater to support the evaluation of the system and 
serve as a long-term planning tool. Tasks include developing 
opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, 
evaluating production and consumption data to develop 
projections, and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. 

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED AND RESOLUTIONS:
When the District acquired the Ojai Water System, there was 
a loss of operational knowledge in the transition. WSC was 
flexible with the project scope and maintained consistent 
communication with District staff and operators, through 
formal meetings and workshops, and informal calls to discuss 
the system and fill the data gaps to meet the District’s needs 
for the project. 

TECHNICAL LEADS:
Kirsten Plonka - Project Manager; Jeroen Olthof - Hydraulic 

Analysis Lead; Heather Freed - Project Engineer; Spencer 
Waterman - Staff Planner.

REFERENCE:
Lindsay Cao, PE - Project Manager 

(805) 649-2251, ext. 144

WSC is a full-service water engineering firm 
with more than 40 skilled employees in eight 
offices throughout California and the Pacific 
Northwest. WSC specializes in water system 
master planning and hydraulic modeling, and 
has direct experience providing those services 
to the District.

Members of our team have completed more 
than 150 hydraulic modeling projects, and 
they excel at developing and calibrating 
hydraulic models. We also understand that 
your staff need a tool that they can use long 
after our work is done. That is why we take 
the time to understand how your operations 
and engineering staff will use the model, and 
identify the best way to facilitate the handoff 
and train your staff.

WSC currently working with the District to 
develop a Condition Based Assessment and 
Water Master Plan for the recently acquired Ojai 
Water System, giving our team an understanding 
of the District’s staff, systems, and preferences.

Our water system hydraulic modeling 
experience is described in the project 
descriptions in this section.

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 13

Firm’s Experience



WATER MASTER PLAN & ON-CALL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

City of Victorville

HYDRAULIC MODEL DEVELOPMENT & SUPPORT
Otay Water District

WSC is preparing a Water Master Plan Update to address 
both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and 
replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. WSC 
updated and is maintaining the water system hydraulic 
model and created a new recycled water hydraulic model 
in InfoWater. The modeling efforts included a close linkage 
to the City’s GIS database. The Master Plan will result 
in a comprehensive 10-year CIP that identifies funding 
requirements for infrastructure upgrades. WSC is also 
supplementing in-house staff resources to update the City’s 
water distribution model, develop a model calibration plan, 
and maintain the updated model, as well as prepare feasibility 
studies to identify water supply and infrastructure needs for 
proposed developments.

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED AND RESOLUTIONS:
The City has a large amount of development occurring within 
the water system. In order to keep track of the location, 
potential demand and any required system upgrades, WSC 
created a geo-referenced database to capture and store 
development data and feasibility study outcomes. This 
database was used in other feasibility studies and during the 
demand projection phase for the Water Master Plan. 

Since 2014, WSC has provided as-needed hydraulic modeling 
services for the District’s water system. The District operates 
a potable water and recycled water distribution system, both 
modeled using InfoWater. WSC validated and calibrated the 
new InfoWater hydraulic model, synchronized data between 
the District’s GIS database and the model, performed fire 
flow analysis for potential developments, used the model to 
generate system curves for temporary pumping operations, 
and trained District operations staff on potential uses for the 
hydraulic model.

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED AND RESOLUTIONS:
A key concern was maintaining consistency in fire flow 
calculations that were provided to developers over time.  
WSC maintained a geo-referenced database of all the fire 
flow requests received and the responses prepared by the 
modelling team.  This database allowed the team to leverage 
past work in efficiently completing requests.

TECHNICAL LEADS:
Jeroen Olthof - Hydraulic Analysis Lead;  

Spencer Waterman - Staff Planner.

REFERENCE:
Victor Fajardo, PE - Project Manager 

(760) 243-6311

TECHNICAL LEADS:
Jeroen Olthof - Project Manager; Joshua Reynolds - QA/QC; 

Kirsten Plonka - Project Engineer.

REFERENCE:
Steven Beppler, PE - Senior Engineer 

(619) 670-2209

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 14

•  F I R M  E X P E R I E N C E  •



HYDRAULIC MODEL DEVELOPMENT & WATER MASTER 
PLAN UPDATE

City of Santa Maria

HYDRAULIC MODEL & WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE
Big Bear City Community Services District,  

Big Bear, CA

WSC is currently developing the District’s Water Master Plan 
Update which included building a new hydraulic model of 
its distribution system. The creation of the model included 
importing data from the District’s new GIS database,  and 
calibrating the model using EPS and fire flow testing. WSC 
conducted site visits and leveraged operator knowledge to 
document and address the maintenance and replacement 
needs of the current water system. WSC prepared detailed 
analysis of the District’s infrastructure and distribution 
system, as well as considered age and useful life. 

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED AND RESOLUTIONS:
Due to the tourist economy of the Big Bear area, residential 
occupancy and water demands fluctuates dramatically 
throughout the year. The District may see a significant 
demand increase if residential occupancy increases even 
without new service connections. WSC developed future 
demand projections assuming current occupancy rates 
remain constant and increased residential occupancy rates 
to understand system capacity constraints under a range of 
demand projections. 

WSC completed a Master Plan that evaluated the City’s 
water distribution and wastewater collection systems. WSC 
developed water and wastewater system hydraulic models 
in InfoWater and SewerGEMS. The models were loaded 
with parcel specific demand data from the City’s utility 
billing system. WSC performed condition assessments that 
evaluated present, 5-year, 10-year, and build-out conditions. 
WSC developed a prioritized CIP which could be utilized to 
allocate capacity related infrastructure costs to developments. 
The CIP list included project phasing, timing, cost estimates, 
and individual project sheets.

DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED AND RESOLUTIONS:
WSC identified critical differences in existing and future 
water use intensities in various portions of the City’s system. 
Differences were identified based on multiple customer 
databases including AMI data, census demographic factors, 
and the City’s planning development inventory by parcel.

TECHNICAL LEADS:
Jeroen Olthof - Principal in Charge; Kirsten Plonka - Project 

Manager; Heather Freed - Project Engineer; Spencer 
Waterman - Staff Planner.

REFERENCE:
Jerry Griffith - Water Department Superintendent 

(909) 584-4008

TECHNICAL LEADS:
Joshua Reynolds - Project Manager; Jeroen Olthof - QA/QC; 

Spencer Waterman - Staff Planner.

REFERENCE:
Shannon Sweeney - Water Resources Manager 

(805) 925-0951 ext. 7416

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 15

•  F I R M  E X P E R I E N C E  •



W h y  s e l e c t  

w s c 

Conflicts

Additional Comments

WSC does not have any conflicts which 
could affect our ability to perform the work 
in a timely fashion over the duration of the 
contract. WSC is currently under contract 
to develop a Water System Master Plan 
and Condition Based Assessment for 
Casitas Municipal Water District’s Ojai 
system and work is nearly complete.

E F F I C I E N T  D E L I V E R Y

WSC has worked with the District on the Condition Based Assessment 
and Water Master Plan for the newly acquired Ojai water system. This 
experience, and our work on similar relevant hydraulic modeling projects, 
enables our team to quickly begin developing a hydraulic model of the 
Casitas Water System.

R E S P O N S I V E  S E R V I C E

The foundation of our WSC-client partnerships and service is based 
on responsiveness. Our clients tell us they appreciate that we listen 
intently, anticipate their needs, and routinely go the extra mile to 
help them succeed. WSC will work with District staff to prioritize and 
execute tasks within the required parameters.

Q U A L I T Y  R E S U LT S

WSC has a reputation for consistently providing high-quality work 
products and has an established QA/QC program to ensure these high 
standards are met. We use industry-recognized best practices and track 
our work to create deliverables that are defensible and actionable. We 
establish critical success factors at the outset of each project to guide 
our actions throughout execution.

T H E  R I G H T  E X P E R I E N C E

WSC created the Ojai Water System Hydraulic Model and is ready to 
leverage that work to create a fully calibrated and integrated hydraulic 
model of the Casitas Water System. This experience is unique to WSC 
and creates the opportunity for project efficiencies and value. 

The District is looking for a 
consultant to create a high quality 

hydraulic model of the Casitas 
Water System that will be used 
for system planning, identifying 

hydraulic deficiencies, and 
evaluating merging the Casitas and 

Ojai Water Systems.

We are excited about the 
opportunity to develop this 

hydraulic model for the District. We 
have assembled a highly qualified 

team with directly relevant 
experience that will go above and 
beyond to deliver that hydraulic 
model. We value our relationship 
with the District and its staff and 
envision a lasting partnership that 

is built on shared success, trust, and 
value.

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 16



WSC is willing to accept the terms and conditions of the Agreement for Engineering Services. However, we respectfully 
request the District consider the proposed revisions to the Agreement included on this page. WSC is currently under 
contract with the District and we are confident we can efficiently come to a mutual agreement on the provided terms.

Acceptance of Contract

1. RESPONSIBILITY OF CONSULTANT. 

a) Consultant is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and the coordination of all testing, analysis, inspection, reports, designs and 
other services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant shall, without 
additional compensation, promptly correct any Consultant negligent errors, omissions, or 
other deficiencies in its analysis, inspection, testing, reports, designs, and other services 
due to its failure to exercise the Standard of Care,; to the extent such corrections are not 
attributable to change in project description or data modification by District. 

b) Consultant shall perform such professional services as may be necessary to accomplish 
the work required to be performed under this Agreement, in accordance with the 
professional skill and care ordinarily provided by firms practicing in the same or similar 
locality under the same or similar circumstances (herein the “Standard of Care”) and this 
Agreement and the negotiated scope of work. Approval by District of analyses, 
inspection, testing, reports, designs and incidental cultural resources monitoring work or 
materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve Consultant of responsibility 
for the technical adequacy of its work. Neither District’s approval or acceptance of, nor 
payment for, any of Consultant's services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any 
rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of 
this Agreement. 

16.  TERMINATION. The District may, by written notice to Consultant, suspend or discontinue the 
performance of all work pursuant to this Agreement, and may terminate this Agreement, with or 
without cause after 15 calendar day’s written notice from the date of mailing. In the event of a 
termination without cause, Consultant will be entitled to a reasonable portion of the lump sum 
fee for its services rendered prior to the effective date of the notice as well as reasonable 
expenses arising out of termination, but Consultant shall have no claim against District for loss of 
anticipated profits or other payment on account of services not yet performed and which are not 
thereafter performed by Consultant. In the event of a termination without cause, Consultant will 
submit a final invoice to District for all services rendered prior to termination within a reasonable 
time, not to exceed 45 days of the effective date of such notice. Any bills received after the 
expiration of the 45-day period need not be paid by the District. 

24. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the 
aggregate, of Consultant, Consultant’s officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants, to District, and anyone claiming by, through, or under District for any claims, 
losses, costs, or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to this 
Project or Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to negligence, 
professional errors and omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty, shall 
not exceed the total compensation received by Consultant or $50,000 whichever is greater. 

25.  WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
Contrary, it is agreed that neither party shall be liable in any event for any special or consequential 
damages suffered by the other arising out of the services hereunder. Special or consequential 
damages as used herein shall include, but not be limited to, loss of capital, loss of product, loss us 
use on any system, or other property, or any other indirect, special or consequential damage, 
whether arising in contract, tort (including negligence), warranty or strict liability. 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Water System Hydraulic Model • 17



R e s u m e s

A P P E N D I X  A .



 

   Kirsten L. Plonka, PE 
 

  

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, California 
Polytechnic State University, 
San Luis Obispo 
MS, Management, Colorado 
State University, Global Campus 
(in-process) 
MS, Organizational Leadership, 
Colorado State University, 
Global Campus (in-process) 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer – Civil, 
California, No. C70746 

Professional Affiliations / 
Certifications 
American Society of Engineers  
American Public Works 
Association 
Engineers Without Borders 
(former Southern California State 
Representative) 
Potable Reuse Advisory 
Committee, San Diego County 
Water Authority 
Advanced Water & Wastewater 
Modeling Certified by Innovyze & 
Bently 
 
Publications 

“Health Effects Study on Potable 
Water Reuse”, A&WMA 
 
Industry Recognition 

2013 Outstanding Water Project 
of the Year from Region 9 
ASCE, Award of merit for San 
Diego Section ASCE for Pala 
Mesa Tank 
 

Professional Experience 

Ms. Plonka brings more than 15 years of experience in the planning, design, and 
management of water, wastewater and recycled water systems. She specializes in project 
management, hydraulic modeling, feasibility studies, infrastructure and water resource 
planning studies, and master planning, including Capital Improvement Plans and budgeting.  
She is well versed in funding alternatives, regulatory compliance, and public policy 
development. Her experience includes database development and integration of geographic 
information systems (GIS) with hydraulic models, recycled water customer databases, and 
asset databases. She also has experience managing public engineering departments, as well 
as headed up wastewater collections. Her extensive experience in the public sector allows 
her to approach projects from an owner’s perspective and plan and design projects that are 
implementable and user-friendly.  
Professional Project Experience 

Casitas Municipal Water District, Water Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan, 
Ojai, CA. Project Manager. Conducting a condition-based assessment and developing a 
Water Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. Tasks include developing 
opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, and evaluating production and 
consumption data to develop projections and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. Developing, calibrating, and utilizing hydraulic 
model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP 
development. Evaluating the capacity of the existing water system and identifying 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 
Oak Lodge Water Services District, Water Master Plan Update, Oak Grove, OR. 
Project Engineer. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water service 
commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and system 
operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model from 
the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model prior to 
using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and storage 
data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address system 
deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and track 
condition data for individual assets within the water system. 

California American Water, Comprehensive Planning Study, Monterey District, CA. 
Project Engineer. Developing a Comprehensive Planning Study (CPS) for California 
American Water’s Monterey District which includes developing recommendations for a CIP, 
and includes customer and demand projections, an assessment of adequacy of supplies, 
treatment, and distribution system facilities, and an evaluation of alternatives for developing 
additional supplies. Updating and calibrating the WaterGEMS hydraulic model. Performing 
an assessment of the distribution system piping, pumping, and storage capacity to meet 
current and projected demands, and to ensure it is providing adequate levels of service and 
reliability. The CIP is based on providing adequate capacity, meeting projected demands and 
growth, and meeting planning criteria and regulatory requirements. 

Otay Water District, As-Needed Hydraulic Modeling Services, Spring Valley, CA. 
Project Engineer. Provide as-needed services for computerized hydraulic models to manage 
the District’s potable water distribution, recycled water distribution, and wastewater 
collection pipe networks. Modeling services will optimize current operations, evaluate 
potential improvement projects, and allow for planning of future developments. 



 

Kirsten Plonka, PE - Page 2  

Carlsbad Municipal Water District, Hydraulic Water Modeling, Carlsbad, CA. 
Engineering Manager. Providing staff support services for hydraulic water modeling and 
development planning. Performing general model review and analysis of the existing system 
to help the City make informed decisions regarding potential changes to the system. Review 
of Feasibility Studies, Water Supply Assessments, and plan checks as needed to support the 
District’s review and conditioning of proposed development projects. 

Rainbow Municipal Water District, Hydraulic Water and Sewer Modeling, Fallbrook, 
CA. District Engineer. Providing services for hydraulic water and sewer modeling and 
development planning. Converted the District’s existing hydraulic models to GIS based 
InfoWater and updated the model to include projects completed since it was developed in 
2006. Performing general model updates and calibrating a previously un-calibrated sewer 
model including performing a flow monitoring study. Providing modeling analysis of the 
existing system to help the District make informed decisions regarding potential changes to 
the system. Review of Feasibility Studies and Water Supply Assessments as needed to 
support the District’s review and conditioning of proposed development projects. 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, Water and Sewer Master Plan 
Updates, Lake Arrowhead, CA. Project Engineer. Prepared comprehensive water and 
sewer master plans. Project included hydraulic modeling of the water and sewer systems 
using H2OMap and H2OMap Sewer, geographical information system update of the entire 
system, and development of a capital improvement program. 

Big Bear City Community Services District, 2017 Water Master Plan Update, Big Bear 
City, CA. Project Manager. Conducted site visits and leveraged operator knowledge to 
document and address the maintenance and replacement needs of the current water system. 
Prepared detailed analysis of the District’s infrastructure and conveyance system, as well as 
considered age and useful life. By the completion of the master plan, a comprehensive CIP 
will be developed that will be used to set annual budgets, establish rates and fees, prioritize 
improvements, and proactively prepare for the future needs of customers. 
Eastern Municpal Water District, Water and Sewer Master Plan Updates, Perris, CA.  
Staff Engineer.  Responsible for conversion of existing H2OMAP hydraulic model to 
InfoWater software, field testing and calibration of hydraulic model, evaluation of pipeline 
capacity to deliver current and future demands and Capital Improvement Program 
prioritization.  

Golden State Water Company, Water and Sewer Master Plan Updates, Mutiple 
Locations, CA.  Staff Engineer.  Responsible for coordinating with stakeholders, preparing 
and conducting a hydrant flow testing plan for model calibration purposes, updating and 
calibrating the hydraulic model in H2OMap, identifying system deficiencies, creating 
Capital Improvement Programs, and writing of comprehensive master plan. 

San Lorenzo Valley Water District, As-Needed Engineering Services, Boulder Creek, 
CA. Project Manager. Providing funding assistance and as-needed engineering services to 
the District. Working to identify funding sources, meet requirements, and complete 
application packages to acquire funding from the Department of Agriculture and Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund for a variety of projects. In addition to assisting the District 
acquire funding, Providing design services for the Highway 9 Water Line Replacement, Bear 
Creek Road Main Replacement, Fall Creek Intake Facility, and more. 

Rainbow Municipal Water District, Asset Management Plan, Fallbrook, CA.  District 
Engineer.  Staff review of GIS based asset management program for water and wastewater 
infrastructure based on materials and age.  

 



 

   Jeroen Olthof, MS, MBA, PE 
 

  

Education 
MBA, USC 
MS, Civil Engineering, University 
of Washington 
BS, Civil Engineering, University 
of Colorado Boulder 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer- Civil, 
California, No. C58597 

Articles 
San Diego’s Recipe for Overflow 
Reduction, Public Works, June, 
2004. 
Capacity Assurance Sets Stage 
for CMOM Success, 
Waterscapes, Vol. 13, No. 2, 
May, 2002 

Presentations 
Management of Sewers in 
Environmentally Sensitive Areas, 
ASCE Pipelines Conference, 
San Diego, CA 2004 
Lessons Learned in San Diego’s 
Collection System Assessment 
Program, Water Environment 
Federation (WEF) Collection 
Systems Conference, Austin, 
TX, June, 2003 
Automated Decision Tools for 
Sewer Collection System 
Assessment, California Water 
Environment Association 
Conference (CWEA), Ontario, 
CA, 2003 
Improved Collection System 
Management Using GIS, Water 
Environment Federation 
Technology and Exposition 
Conference (WEFTEC), 
Chicago, IL, October, 2002 
An Incremental Approach to GIS 
and Floodplain Mapping, 
Floodplain Management 
Association Conference, 
Sacramento, CA, September, 
2000 
A Hydrogen Sulfide Screening 
Tool Within GIS, WEFTEC, 
Collection Systems Conference, 
Salt Lake City, UT, May, 1999    
 

Professional Experience 

Mr. Olthof has more than 25 years of water system engineering experience specializing in 
hydraulic modeling and master planning. He is a nationally recognized expert in hydraulic 
modeling, GIS integration, and data analysis and management. He has completed more than 
125 hydraulic modeling projects and over 30 Master Plans throughout California. His 
experience includes research and analysis of existing systems, asset management, capital 
improvement planning and development, life cycle cost estimation, and hydraulic modeling 
software 

Representative Projects 

Casitas Municipal Water District, Water Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan, 
Ojai, CA. Project Manager. Conducting a condition-based assessment and developing a 
Water Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. Tasks include developing 
opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, and evaluating production and 
consumption data to develop projections and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. Developing, calibrating, and utilizing hydraulic 
model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP 
development. Evaluating the capacity of the existing water system and identifying 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 

City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Hydraulic Analysis Lead. 
Preparing a master plan that will address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and 
rehabilitation and replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project includes 
hydraulic modeling using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level 
estimates of required capital spending each year based on system inventory and expected 
remaining useful life values, and a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

California American Water, Comprehensive Planning Study, Monterey District, CA. 
Project Manager. Developing a Comprehensive Planning Study (CPS) for California 
American Water’s Monterey District which includes developing recommendations for a CIP, 
and includes customer and demand projections, an assessment of adequacy of supplies, 
treatment, and distribution system facilities, and an evaluation of alternatives for developing 
additional supplies. Updating and calibrating the WaterGEMS hydraulic model. Performing 
an assessment of the distribution system piping, pumping, and storage capacity to meet 
current and projected demands, and to ensure it is providing adequate levels of service and 
reliability. The CIP is based on providing adequate capacity, meeting projected demands and 
growth, and meeting planning criteria and regulatory requirements. 

Otay Water District, As-Needed Hydraulic Modeling Services, Spring Valley, CA. 
Project Manager. Provide as-needed services for computerized hydraulic models to manage 
the District’s potable water distribution, recycled water distribution, and wastewater 
collection pipe networks. Modeling services will optimize current operations, evaluate 
potential improvement projects, and allow for planning of future developments.  

City of Victorville, As-Needed Engineering Services, Victorville, CA. Senior Engineer. 
Converted the H2ONet model to InfoWater and updated it to include new infrastructure. 
Through an on-call contract, completed Water Feasibility Studies to determine the demands, 
storage, pipeline size, and configuration needed for proposed developments. Developed a 
tool to track water supply and storage needs for the entire system and by pressure zone and 
quantify demands and storage capacity requirements for each project. 



 
 
 

Jeroen Olthof, PE, MS, MBA - Page 2 

Boulder City Public Works Department, El Dorado Valley Water System Evaluation, 
Boulder City, NV.  Hydraulic Modeling Lead. Prepared a hydraulic model using 
InfoWater to evaluate the ability to deliver potable water to the El Dorado energy facilities. 
The model was built using pipeline record drawings, and demands were based on service 
contracts between customers and the city. Diurnal patterns were used to simulate the water 
demand of solar and gas-fired energy production facilities. The hydraulic model was used to 
evaluate potential improvements including new pipelines, storage tanks, and valve stations. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. 
Principal in Charge. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water 
service commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and 
system operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model 
from the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model 
prior to using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and 
storage data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address 
system deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and 
track condition data for individual assets within the water system. The final update will 
include a capital improvement program. 

California American Water, Baldwin Hills Water Distribution System Model Update, 
Baldwin Park, CA. Project Manager.  Project manager for development of an updated 
hydraulic model of the Baldwin Hills water distribution system using WaterGEMS.  Used 
the model results to evaluate future operating conditions for the Olympiad and Mount 
Vernon booster stations. 

Moulton Niguel Water District, Potable Water Hydraulic Model Development, Laguna 
Niguel, CA. Project Engineer.  Prepared a detailed hydraulic network model of the potable 
water distribution system using H2OMap Water, which comprised of over 52,000 services. 
This model simulates service pressures under varying conditions within the distribution 
system, and is used to plan for future system modification and operational analyses. 

Chugach Management. Services, Kirtland Air Force Base Low Pressure Water Study, 
Kirtland Air Force Base, NM. Modeling Lead.  Developed a hydraulic model of the water 
distribution system serving both sides of the Kirtland AFB using InfoWater. The hydraulic 
model was used to identify hydraulic deficiencies in the existing system and evaluate 
potential improvements. 

Irvine Ranch Water District, Zone A Recycled Water Hydraulic Model, Irvine, CA.  
Project Manager.  Provided hydraulic modeling for Zone A system using InfoWater. The 
hydraulic model was used to generate system curves to support the design of a new effluent 
pumping station. 

Irvine Ranch Water District, Lake Forest Recycled Water Area Plan, Lake Forest, CA. 
Project Engineer.  Assisted with preparation of the Lake Forest Recycled Water Area Plan. 
Evaluated potential sites for conversion from potable water to recycled water for outdoor 
irrigation use. Performed geographic information system (GIS) analysis and hydraulic 
modeling using InfoWater to estimate costs for necessary distribution improvements. 

Town of Estes Park, Mary's Lake Water Treatment Plant Retrofit, Estes Park, CO. 
Project Engineer. Assisted with conversion of the town's existing hydraulic model to a 
geographic information system (GIS) based modeling software (InfoWater), as part of the 
water treatment plant retrofit. The 2 mgd conventional treatment facility was retrofitted with 
submerged membrane technology, increasing capacity to 4 mgd and allowing for 6 mgd 
capacity in the future.  

 



 

   Joshua H. Reynolds, MS, PE 
 

  

Education 
MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, California 
Polytechnic University, San Luis 
Obispo, CA 
BS, Civil Engineering, California 
Polytechnic University, San Luis 
Obispo, CA 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer - Civil, 
California, No. C65400  

Professional Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers, Member 
 

Professional Experience 

Mr. Reynolds has 18 years of civil engineering experience specializing in water and recycled 
water systems. His experience includes hydraulic analysis; condition and capacity-based 
assessment; pipeline, pump station, and tank analysis and design; and construction 
management and administration. His strong combination of planning, design, and 
construction experience enables him to create, calibrate, and use hydraulic models that 
clients can use to evaluate the effect of potential upgrades to the existing system. 

Representative Projects 

Victorville Water District, Water District Master Plan Update 2016, Victorville, CA. 
QA/QC.  Preparing an update to the District’s drinking water production and distribution 
system master plan.  Work includes minor updates to existing water InfoWater hydraulic 
model, identifying and evaluating system improvements, preforming a water quality 
evaluation, developing a capacity-driven Capital Improvement Plan, and developing a 
Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan.  Work also includes preparing a recycled water master 
plan for the SCLA area located within the District’s boundary and a SCADA master plan 

City of Santa Maria, 2012 Utility Master Plan Update, Santa Maria, CA. Project 
Manager.  Preparing a Master Plan Update to assess the capacity of the City’s water and 
wastewater collection system, and developing a prioritized, risk-based capital improvement 
plan for the utilities.  The plan update includes development of a new water model in 
InfoWater and a sewer collection system model in SeewerGEMS. The models were loading 
using actual spatially allocated water consumption data. 

City of Pismo Beach, 2015 Water Master Plan Update, Pismo Beach, CA. Project 
Manager.  Performing an update of the City of Pismo Beach 2004 Water Master Plan. 
Creating and calibrating an all-pipes, spatially allocated demand hydraulic model of the 
City’s water distribution system using Bentley’s WaterGEMS software. Utilizing the 
hydraulic model to evaluate capacity limitations for current and future buildout scenarios 
and opportunities to optimize operations. Developing condition based-replacement plans for 
aging infrastructure and an updated CIP project list to prepare the City for budget planning. 

Otay Water District, As-Needed Hydraulic Modeling Services, Spring Valley, CA. 
Technical Advisor. Provide as-needed services for computerized hydraulic models to 
manage the District’s potable water distribution, recycled water distribution, and wastewater 
collection pipe networks. Modeling services will optimize current operations, evaluate 
potential improvement projects, and allow for planning of future developments. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. 
Technical Advisor. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water 
service commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and 
system operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model 
from the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model 
prior to using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and 
storage data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address 
system deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and 
track condition data for individual assets within the water system. The final update will 
include a capital improvement program. 



 

Joshua H. Reynolds, PE - Page 2  

City of Arroyo Grande, 2011 Water System Master Plan, Arroyo Grande, CA.  Project 
Manager.  Developing a master plan for the City’s drinking water production and 
distribution system.  Work includes development of an updated hydraulic model using 
WaterGEMS software, and application of GIS datasets to conduct a risk-based condition 
assessment of the water distribution system to recommend prioritized improvements. 

City of Paso Robles, 2015 Water Master Plan, Paso Robles, CA. Project Manager.  
Update included a survey of capacity limitations to anticipate expected growth along the 
outskirts of the existing infrastructure. Analysis of the aging pipeline detailed needs for 
replacement or rehabilitation of the distribution system to avoid failure in the future.  A 
Capital Improvement Plan was created and needs identified in the system analysis for the 
City to act upon.  
City of Guadalupe, Water Master Plan, City of Guadalupe, CA. Project Engineer. 
Prepared a comprehensive water master plan for the City of Guadalupe, including water 
modeling of the distribution system. The plan included detailed recommendations for water 
storage and distribution system capital improvements, and a capital improvements program 
to serve current and 20-year build-out needs. 

San Miguel Community Services District, Water and Wastewater Master Plans, San 
Miguel, CA. Project Engineer. Created a sewage collection system spreadsheet model of 
the San Miguel Community Services District collection system. Used the spreadsheet to 
make recommendations for improvements to the existing sewage collection system. Prepared 
a comprehensive water master plan for the community of San Miguel, including water 
modeling of the distribution system. 

Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company, North Apple Valley Water System 
Improvement Plan, Town of Apple Valley, CA. QA/QC Engineer.  Evaluated the 
capability and reliability of AVRWC’s Bell Mountain and Stoddard Pressure Zones in north 
Apple Valley, which currently have low customer demands and high fire flow requirements.  
Spatially allocated existing demands, performed hydraulic analysis of the existing system 
using AVRWC’s hydraulic model in InfoWater, evaluated multiple system level alternatives 
for each pressure zone, including changing the HGL; and developed a CIP to improve the 
existing system.  Recommended revised pressure zone boundaries and performed a 
preliminary parcel screening to identify potential tank and booster stations sites needed to 
serve the study area as demands increase. 

Templeton Community Services District, 2012 Water System Master Plan Update.  
Project Engineer.  Prepared updated water distribution and treatment system master plan 
including:  updated system mapping; development of GIS dataset for the distribution system; 
spatially allocated water demands using customer consumption records; development of land 
use water demand factors; creation and calibration of a new hydraulic model; estimated 
build-out and future demands; hydraulic capacity evaluation; development of a 20 year CIP 
plan; and preparation of an Integrated Resources Plan combining master plan updates for the 
District’s water and sewer systems. 

City of Santa Barbara, Wastewater Collection System Hydraulic Modeling Services.  
QA/QC.  Prepared and updated collection system hydraulic model.  Utilized updated GIS 
data to develop an all pipes collection system hydraulic model to replace the City’s existing 
skeletonized model. Developed spatially allocated average daily sewer flow estimates 
through an analysis of winter water demands and developed wet weather flow estimates by 
analyzing storm events and corresponding wastewater flows.  Utilized the hydraulic model 
to identify capacity-constrained pipelines under the current and future sewer flow scenarios 
and to develop list of necessary capital projects.  Performing on-going model maintenance 
and as-needed model updates. 



 

   Heather Freed, PE, MS 
 

  

Education 
MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, Cal Poly, San Luis 
Obispo 
BS, Environmental Engineering, 
Cal Poly, San Luis Obispo  

Professional Registrations 
PE – Civil, CA, No. 89406 
 
 
 

Professional Experience 

Ms. Freed is an Engineer in Training with experience in water and wastewater treatment and 
distribution systems.  She has experience evaluating various hydraulic measures including 
headloss through pipes, hydraulic jumps, and groundwater pumping.  Her knowledge also 
includes groundwater contamination, water chemistry and water quality measurements, 
physio-chemical and biological water and wastewater treatment, and climate change and 
energy intensity analysis. 

Representative Projects 

Casitas Municipal Water District, Ojai System Condition Based Assessment and Water 
Master Plan, Ojai, CA. Staff Engineer. Conducting a condition-based assessment and 
developing a Water Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. Tasks include 
developing opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, and evaluating production 
and consumption data to develop projections and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. Developing, calibrating, and utilizing hydraulic 
model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP 
development. Evaluating the capacity of the existing water system and identifying 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 

City of Pismo Beach, 2015 Water Master Plan Update, Pismo Beach, CA. Staff 
Engineer.  Performing an update of the City of Pismo Beach 2004 Water Master Plan. 
Creating and calibrating an all-pipes, spatially allocated demand hydraulic model of the 
City’s water distribution system using Bentley’s WaterGEMS software. Utilizing the 
hydraulic model to evaluate capacity limitations for current and future buildout scenarios 
and opportunities to optimize operations. Developing condition based-replacement plans for 
aging infrastructure and an updated CIP project list to prepare the City for budget planning. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. Staff 
Engineer. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water service 
commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and system 
operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model from 
the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model prior to 
using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and storage 
data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address system 
deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and track 
condition data for individual assets within the water system. The final update will include a 
capital improvement program. 

California American Water, Monterey District, 2018 Comprehensive Planning Study 
and Condition Based Assessment, Monterey County, CA. Engineering Support.  
Updating the California American Water Monterey County water distribution system 
Comprehensive Planning Study. Building calibrating a hydraulic model with over 600 miles 
of pipelines and 50 pressure zones to evaluate system capacity and operations. Evaluating 
system condition based on asset data and site inspection reports. Developing a 
comprehensive CIP list for future rate studies.   

Big Bear City Community Services District, 2017 Water Master Plan Update, Big Bear 
City, CA. Staff Engineer. Preparing a detailed analysis of the District’s infrastructure that 
will result in a Master Plan which includes a comprehensive Capital Improvement Program. 
WSC is performing infrastructure condition assessments, developing a defensible 
Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan, and identifying high-priority projects. 



 

   Spencer J. Waterman 
 

  

Education 
BS, City & Regional Planning, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo 

Certifications 
American Water Works 
Association, California-Nevada 
Section, Water Use Efficiency 
Practitioner Grade 1, Certificate 
# 1714 

Professional Affiliations 
American Water Works 
Association, Member 
 

Professional Experience 

Mr. Waterman is an experienced Planner with eight years of experience which includes 
providing GIS support for the hydraulic modeling of water and recycled water systems. He 
has completed more than 50 technical planning studies and has served in an integral role on 
more than 10 master plans. He has extensive experience utilizing GIS to spatially allocate 
water demands and develop maps for clients. He specializes in supply and demand 
projections which are used in capital improvement planning. 

Professional Project Experience 

Casitas Municipal Water District, Water Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan, 
Ojai, CA. Staff Planner. Provided GIS support for the development of a hydraulic model of 
Ojai Water System in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP 
development. Evaluating the capacity of the existing water system and identifying 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 
Through this project, Spencer developed relationships with District staff and an 
understanding of the greater Casitas Water System. 

City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Staff Planner. Preparing a 
master plan that will address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and 
replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project includes hydraulic modeling 
using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level estimates of required capital 
spending each year based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values, 
and a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

City of Victorville, On-Call Water Modeling, Victorville, CA. Staff Planner. Providing 
staff support services for hydraulic water modeling and development planning.  GIS and data 
management to support GIS based InfoWater modeling to help the City make informed 
decisions regarding potential changes to the system.  GIS support for preparing Feasibility 
Studies and Water Supply Assessments as needed to support the City’s review and 
conditioning of proposed development projects. 

City of Santa Maria, 2012 Utilities Master Plan Update, Santa Maria, CA. Staff 
Planner. Contributing author for the 2012 Utilities Master Plan Update. Developed spatially 
allocated demands for current and future demands through buildout using GIS for 
incorporation into a hydraulic model. Developed land use demand factors based on current 
development and projected land use and zoning of each parcel at buildout. 

City of Paso Robles, 2014 Water Master Plan Update, Paso Robles, CA. Staff Planner. 
Contributing author for the 2014 Water Master Plan Update. Used GIS to spatially allocate 
demands for current and future timeframes through buildout for incorporation into a 
hydraulic model. Developed land use demand factors based on current development and 
projected land use of each parcel and development at buildout.  

City of Arroyo Grande, City of Arroyo Grande Capital Improvement Plan for the 2011 
Water and Sewer Master Plan Updates, Arroyo Grande, CA. Staff Planner. 
Contributing author for the Water and Sewer Master Plan Updates. Developed spatially 
allocated demands for current and future demands through buildout using GIS for 
incorporation into a hydraulic model. Developed land use demand factors based on current 
development and projected land use and zoning of each parcel at buildout. 



C O N T A C T

805 Aerovista Place, Suite 201

San Luis Obispo, CA 93405

Phone: (805) 457-8833

Fax: (805) 888-2764

Expectwsc.com 



 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  MICHAEL FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR HYDROGEOLOGIC CONSULTING 
SERVICES 

DATE:  11/14/2018 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter into an 
agreement for professional hydrogologic consulting services with Pueblo Water Resources Inc, 
for the sum not to exceed $20,000.00. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (Pueblo) has provided professional hydrogeologic consulting 
services to the District including condition assessment of the wells in the Ojai Water System 9as 
a subconsultant to Water Systems Consulting) and more recently, the Wellfield Modeling and 
Interference Report under direct contract with the District. 
 
This contract will be utilized on a Task Order basis when Engineering or Operations and 
Maintenance staff identify a specific project for which hydrogeologic support is needed. The first 
Task Order will be an analysis and summary of potential groundwater supply augmentation 
options, including whether to rehabilitate an existing well or drill a new well. Pueblo will prepare 
a Technical Memo describing the associated costs, schedule, potential well capacity, and 
permitting associated with each option. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The 2018-19 fiscal year budget includes a line item for Well Rehabilitation/Replacement from 
which these services will be funded. 
 
Attachment: 
Proposal from Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. 



PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC 
4478 Market Street, Suite 705 • Ventura, CA 93003 • 805.644.0470

Project No. 18-0141 
October 25, 2018 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, California 93022 

Attention: Julia Aranda, Engineering Manager 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services; Support for Groundwater Supply Engineering 
and Operations. 

Dear Julia: 

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (Pueblo) is pleased to submit this proposal to assist the 
Casitas Municipal Water District (District) with professional hydrogeologic support related to the 
District’s Wellfield engineering and operations.  Work under this proposal would be performed 
on a task-by-task, as–requested basis, and would include services performed to assist the 
District with hydrogeologic assessment, wellfield operations, well assessments and 
maintenance, well performance monitoring and tracking, water supply augmentation 
investigations, and other miscellaneous tasks.  Work for each task would be performed upon 
written confirmation and approval by the District with respect to the scope and costs associated 
with each desired task. 

Pueblo’s team to assist the District with wellfield operations includes myself, Martin 
Feeney, and Robert Marks, all State of California Certified Hydrogeologists.  Together, we have 
a 30 year working relationship, with special focus on water well design and construction, well 
performance assessment, well rehabilitation, and groundwater supply development and 
management. 

Based on our understanding of the issues that are likely to arise in the near future 
related to wellfield engineering and operations, we suggest that a budget of $20,000 be 
established at this time.  Costs for Pueblo’s services would be billed on a time and materials 
basis in accordance with our 2018 Fee Schedule, which is included with this proposal. 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide assistance to the District with this important 
element of the District’s water supply portfolio.  Please contact me if you require additional 
information or have any questions related to this proposal. 

Sincerely, 

PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC. 

Michael S. Burke, P.G, C.Hg. 
Principal Hydrogeologist 

Attachment: 2018 Fee Schedule 

EXHIBIT A



PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC • 4478 Market Street, Suite 705 • Ventura, CA 93003 
805.644.0470 • 805.644.0480 FAX 

 PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC. 
2018 FEE SCHEDULE 

Professional Services 

Principal Professional............................................................................$205/hr 

Senior Professional...............................................................................$190/hr 

Project Professional..............................................................................$175/hr 

Staff Professional.................................................................................$145/hr 

Technician...........................................................................................$135/hr 

Illustrator............................................................................................$120/hr 

Word Processing....................................................................................$95/hr 

Other Direct Charges 

Subcontracted Services............................................................... Cost Plus 15% 

Outside Reproduction.................................................................. Cost Plus 15% 

Travel Expenses..........................................................................Cost Plus 15% 

Per Diem*.........................................................................................  Variable 

Vehicle ..............................................................................................$75/day 

Equipment  Charges 

Drilling Fluid Test Kit........................................................ $100/day, $400/week 

Field Water Quality Meter (Hach DR890)............................... $75/day, $275/week 

Orion ORP/pH/Temp Probe.................................................. $75/day, $275/week 

Water Level Probes (In-Situ Level Troll)................................ $75/day, $300/week 

Water Quality Probes (In-Situ Aqua Troll)........ ................... $100/day, $325/week 

Ultrasonic Flowmeter..............   .....................................$200/day, $750/week 

*Regionally and seasonally specific to project.



TO: MICHAEL FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER

FROM: JORDAN SWITZER, WATER QUALITY SPECIALIST

SUBJECT: MONTHLY HYDROLOGIC STATUS REPORT FOR OCTOBER, 2018

DATE: NOVEMBER 8, 2018

RECOMMENDATION: 

This item is presented for information only and no action is required. Data are 
provisional and subject to revision.

DISCUSSION:

October, 2018

Water Year (WY: Oct 01 - Sep 30)

Average Annual Rainfall

Well field produciton (October, 2018)

Surface water supplementation (October, 2018)

Dynamic* depth to water surface- Mutual #6 (October, 2018)

Change in dynamic* level from last month
*Static depth to water surface unavailable at this time

Diversions (October, 2018) Total diversions WY to date

Diversion days in October Diversion days this WY

Water surface elevation (10/31/2018)

Water storage on November 01, 2018

Water storage last month

Net change in storage

Change in storage from October 31, 2017 -12,680 AF

Robles Fish Passage and Diversion Facility Diversion Data

  482.05 ft AMSL

  73,400 AF

  74,894 AF

Casitas Reservoir Data

Ojai Water System Data

Casitas Dam Matilija Dam

-  1,494 AF

21.70"

0.04"

0.04"

28.05"

Thacher  School

Rainfall Data

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

0 AF

0

0 AF

0

0.00"

0.00"

23.47"

0.14"

0.14"

-  11 ft

198 ft

  61 AF

106 AF



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:    November 9, 2018 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  Interim General Manager, Michael Flood 
Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of October 23, 2018, at 1000 hours. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Russ Baggerly 
Director Mary Bergen 

 Interim General Manager, Michael Flood 
 Engineering Manager, Julia Aranda  
        

2. Public Comments.   
None. 
 

3. Board comments. 
None 

4. Manager’s Comments. 
IGM Flood reported that the La Conchita shutdown was successful and the contractor had 
completed enough work to avoid a second shutdown entirely. Additionally, IGM Flood indicated 
that the next Water Security tours will occur on October 25th & 27th. 
 

5. Update on the Matilija Deep Well Project.  
IGM Flood gave an update on recent meetings and planned future actions for the Matilija deep 
well project. 
 

6. Discussion of LAFCo out-of-agency service request and agreement for 7676 Stanley Park 
Road. 
EM Aranda gave a presentation regarding a request for an out-of-agency service request 
prompted by the rebuilding of a residence destroyed as a result of the Thomas Fire. 
 
Committee members asked questions and EM Aranda provided clarifying answers that principally 
revolved around the current restricted safe yield of Lake Casitas. 
 
IGM Flood was then directed to provide the requestor with a letter denying the request. 
  

7. Review Request for Proposals for the State Water Project Interconnection Phase 3 (Pump 
Station, Reservoir and Connecting Pipelines). 
EM Aranda gave a presentation regarding the timing and content for the Phase 3 SWP 
interconnection RFP. 
 
Committee members asked questions and EM Aranda and IGM Flood provided clarifying 
answers. 
 
The RFP will be released in early December 2018. 
 
 



 2 

8. Review Request for Proposals (Reissue) for the Casitas Comprehensive Water Resources 
Plan.  
EM Aranda gave a presentation regarding the response to the recently released RFP for the 
Casitas Comprehensive Water Resources Plan. Only one response had been received and the 
recommendation was made to reissue the RFQ to improve the possible response. 
 
The committee concurred that the RFP should be reissued.  



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
 
DATE:    November 8, 2018 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Park Services Manager, Carol Belser 
 
Re:    Recreation Committee Meeting of November 8, at 1000 hours. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file the minutes of the November 2018 
Recreation Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Pete Kaiser 
Director Bill Hicks 
Interim General Manager, Mike Flood  

 Park Services Manager, Carol Belser 
 Maintenance Foreman, Tim Lawson 
 Division Officer, Joe Evans 
 One member of the public was in attendance  
   

2. Public Comments.  There were no public comments.   
  
3. Board/Management comments. 

Director Kaiser opened the meeting requesting a moment of silence in honor of those who 
were killed in Thousand Oaks last evening, including Ventura County Sheriff, Sergeant 
Ron Helus. Director Hicks requested information be passed to Mike Flood, Interim General 
Manager (not yet in attendance), that Human Resources details of record, be given to the 
Board members. Director Hicks also asked about the status to clear vegetation from the 
Robles Diversion Dam. Those in attendance did not have updated information on the 
status. Park Services Manager, Carol Belser reported that the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s trailer storage yard is now virtually full. Park Ranger Stuart Birdsey oversees the 
trailer storage program, and he and his staff have successfully filled the rental spaces. 
Park Manager Belser also reported that the Bureau of Reclamation’s 10 year visitation 
assessment of the Recreation Area is scheduled to happen sometime in April 2019. Their 
previous visit was in October 2009.  
 

4. Review of the monthly Recreation Report. 
Park Manager, Carol Belser presented the report and explained that the report combines 
both September 2018 and October 2018 reports minus the financial figures and visitation 
figures for October 2018 because they are not yet available. She also pointed out that two 
unauthorized vessels gained access onto Lake Casitas. Division Officer Joe Evans 
provided details on the incidents and both parties were interviewed and released by Park 
Rangers.      

 
5. Discussion of Division of Boating and Waterways grant opportunity for Floating 

Restroom replacement. 
Park Services Manager, Carol Belser reviewed the recent opportunity for Casitas to 



 2 

replace 2007 Floating Restroom #199 with a new unit. She informed the Committee that 
two 2005 units were replaced in 2017 under the same grant at no cost to the Casitas. Unit 
#199 is in need of replacement so the grant opportunity is good timing.     
 

6. Discussion of upcoming events planned for 2019. 
Park Manager Belser provided a power point presentation of the events planned, and two   
event ideas that she requested be agenized for further discussion and possible approval.  
Director Kaiser thanked staff for the list of events planned, and requested the list be 
forwarded to the Board for their information at an upcoming meeting. Director Kaiser was 
pleased to see so many activities planned in the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  
 

7.  Public Relations Media Outreach Plans for 2019. 
Park Manager Carol Belser reviewed the outreach program and activities staff participate 
in, including the grant funded invasive species public education and outreach programs. 
Other avenues of outreach include purchasing advertisements in the Ojai Recreation 
Brochure, the Ojai Quarterly, the Ojai Visitors Guide, Banner on HWY 150. Casitas’ web 
site, Casitas’ own quarterly brochure are other avenues including hand out publications to 
directly customers. Director Hicks suggested notifying funeral homes to let them know that 
Lake Casitas has great venues for celebration of life and memorials. Director Kaiser 
suggested contacting the many clubs and organizations in the County for possible meeting 
venues.  
 

8.       Drought Contingency Planning for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 Park Manager Belser presented the Committee with staff plans and ideas to continue to 

decrease water use in the LCRA. It included reducing the time a shower token can buy for 
4 minutes to 3 minutes, low flow shower heads that cannot be unscrewed by customers, 
ceasing irrigation in the few remaining irrigated areas around the front entrance and at 
Campground Bass and possibly replacing the Campground Bass’s turf with artificial turf. In 
the small areas of irrigated grass, maintenance staff felt they can replace the grass with 
mulch or artificial turf. Discussion continued on the launch ramp and emergency vessel 
access to the lake. The historic drought has created a challenge and staff are dedicated to 
allow boat launch (and removal) as long as possible.  

 
9. Discussion regarding staff recommendation to improve bathroom cleanliness. 
 Park Manager Belser provided a lengthy PowerPoint presentation providing a visual of 

details of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s restroom and sewage facilities throughout 
the park. The entire LCRA’s restrooms, shower facilities are handled by chemical toilets 
(CT’s) and flush toilets/showers and where all facilities’ water and sewage flows into the 
many holding tanks. The 104 deployed (plus or minus depending on the season) chemical 
toilets are pumped out by our single 300 gallon mini-pump truck and placed into one 
specially designed tank near Campground Jay, where debris (trash) is screened out 
preventing it from entering the large pump (transportation) truck and therefore preventing it 
from being dumped in the Ojai Valley Sanitary District’s treatment facility.  

 
 All holding tanks are then pumped out and the sewage is transported to the treatment 

facility, using one single large 3,400 pump truck on a 14.2 miles round trip. The system 
does not meet the expectation of the public especially in regards to the CT’s. Ms. Belser 
recommendation is to re-visit the November 2017 sewer system assessment plan that the 
Board reviewed, to gather further data and plan the financing of the project using outside 
grant funds or the current Bureau of Reclamation’s grant funds by an amendment. She 
illustrated the many problematic issues a sewer system will alleviate. Maintenance 
Foreman Tim Lawson spoke on the topic as well as Division Officer Joe Evans. The 
Committee supported the recommendation and Director Kaiser asked what else can be 
done to improve the situation immediately. Ms. Belser asked for funding for a new second 
mini pump truck at a cost of about $85,000 that will provide a larger transport tank to empty 
(pump out) the many CT’s more efficiently with fewer trips to the holding tank at Jay. The 
Committee supported forwarding both recommendations for Board consideration.    



 3 

   
10. Update on the status of the enhanced Lake Casitas Recreation Area exit sign 

illumination. 
 Park Manager Belser informed the Committee that the illuminated exit sign was purchased, 

in hand and will be mounted this month. She pretended the Committee schematic of what 
the sign will look like over the exit lane of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  

 
11.  Update on the Teague Watershed Security 
 Park Manager Belser reviewed the Park Ranger daily patrol of the watershed, and also the 

communication in place between Casitas and the Bureau of Reclamation, Federal Law 
Enforcement and Forest Service, County of Ventura’s resources and Caltrans. Discussion 
continued on the topic with Director Kaiser suggesting discussion continue with the Bureau 
of Reclamation and the County of Ventura regarding North Santa Ana Road parking and 
dumping, and a letter be sent to Supervisor Bennett encouraging public closure North 
Santa Ana Road.   

 
12.  News of Note: Communication to Board Members  
 Director Kaiser stated that he would like staff to provide up to day/date happenings of the 

LCRA as information to the Board members, in a more real time effort. Casitas staff in 
attendance can communicate proactively more regularly, and can also send short emails of 
news to the General Manager to send then out as updates and information items.  

 
13.  Review of Incidents and Comments 
 Division Officer Evans reviewed the October 2018 incidents.   
 
   The meeting was adjourned at 11:40 A.M.    



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Executive Committee 

 
DATE:    November 9, 2018 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  Interim General Manager, Michael Flood 
Re:    Executive Committee Meeting of November 9, 2018, at 1000 hours. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Jim Word 
Director Bill Hicks 

 Assistant General Manager, Michael Flood 
  
   

2. Public Comments.  None. 
 

3. Board comments. 
 
Director Hicks commented about the need for a human resources consultant to attend a Board 
Meeting in the near future. 
 
IGM Flood indicated that Casitas’ general counsel was lining this up for the Board meeting of 
November 28th.  
 

4. Manager’s Comments. 
IGM, Flood informed the committee about two items: 
 

- The next Water Security tour of Casitas MWD water facilities will occur on November 
17th. 

- The State Water Contractors have scheduled another special meeting regarding the 
California Water Fix for Wednesday, November 14th.  

 
5. Discussion regarding a letter received from Casitas Springs Mutual Water Company 

regarding consolidation.  
IGM Flood informed the committee on this issue and that more discussion will occur once staff 
has the ability to review the analysis that was sent along with the letter. 
 
Committee members asked questions and IGM Flood provided clarifying answers. 
 

6. Update on Elected Official Outreach regarding Federal Agency cooperation on emergency 
water projects. 
IGM Flood updated the committee on actions already taken and planned future actions including 
a handout that provide a summary. 
 
Committee members asked questions and IGM Flood provided clarifying answers. 



 

 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  November 7, 2018  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for September and October 2018   
 
Visitation Numbers 

The following is a comparison of visitations* for September 2018, October 2018 visitation is 
not yet available:   

 September  
2018 

September  
2017 

August 
2018 

Visitor Days 54,936 50,172 84,860 

Camps 6,227 5,787 8,645 

Cars 13,734 12,543 21,215 

Boats 131 94 180 

Kayaks & 
Canoes 

5 6 1 

*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   

Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement 
decals + campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 

Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 

Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 

Fiscal Year to Date = Beginning July 2018 reflects the total of all visitation shown in the top graph. 

 
Operations and Boating  
 The District’s Prevention, Control and Management Plan for Invasive Species and the 
Vulnerability Assessment for Invasive Species 2016 reports were updated and resubmitted 
responding to comments received from California Department Fish and Wildlife within the 
required 60 business day time-line per the California Code of Regulations Title 14 §672.1. In 
addition the District’s Lake Casitas Invasive Mussel Rapid Response Plan was re-submitted to 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife in response to their original comments. To date, we 
are awaiting their approval or additional comments on the reports. The comments and 
subsequent updates have resulted in improved documents.  

The 2018 Labor Day weekend ended the busy season. The season’s last customer 
interactive programs continued in September with Astronomy Night, a Movie in the Water 
Adventure, and a Junior Park Ranger program that discussed the threats of invasive species 
led by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. The annual Coyote Classic Disc Golf 
tournament was held September 28, 29 and 30 and event organizers reported a high number 
of participants with 186 people playing in the tournament. The Ventura County Championships 
cross country competition was held on September 13, and attracted over 1500 runners 
representing 39 schools.      
  

Fiscal Year to Date* 

2018/2019 257,256 

2017/2018 260,064 

%Change -1.080 



 

 
 

2 

Five vessels passed the vessel inspection process for entry into Lake Casitas in 
September and 10 in October. A total of 380 vessels were retagged in September and 311 in 
October. Two vessels failed the first inspection in September and 4 in October. Santa Ana 
Launch Ramp ceased operation after the water level decreased. Old Coyote was reactivated 
in July 2017 and continues to be the only launch ramp in use. The Park Services Officer’s 
represented the Lake Casitas Recreation Area and the CMWD at the 2018 Ojai Day. Their time 
and the booth set-up is a strategic effort funded by the State of California Division of Boating 
and Waterways to proactively educated the public about invasive species, namely quagga and 
zebra mussels. Many Ojai Day attendees stopped by the information booth and learned about 
the consequences of a quagga/zebra mussel infestation in Lake Casitas. In addition to the Park 
Service Officer effort, the Casitas Water adventure staff gave classes on hands only CPR.   

The month of October was busy in 
the Recreation Area (for the off season) due 
to the three cross country events held on 
October 3rd, October 14th, and October 26.  

 
Incidents 
There were 141 patrol observations 

where park staff made customer contact in 
September, 2018. Park Rangers handled 31 
customer service issues. One incident 
involved a hit and run and subsequent arrest 
by CHP for DUI. One customer was evicted 
for six months for failure to pay fees and 
aggression toward a Park Ranger. There 
were 4 medical responses, two that required 

an ambulance, 46 calls for service, and 113 disturbances with 2 requiring support from the 
Ventura County Sheriff’s Office. There were no unattended fires, 5 boating violations, 5 leash 
law violations, 23 traffic violations, one trespassing, 8 parking violations that resulted in 4 
citations, and 9 body contacts in Lake Casitas. In October 2018, there were 36 patrol 
observations where park staff made customer contact. Park Rangers handled 15 customer 
service issues. There were 3 medical responses that required an ambulance, 15 calls for 
service, and 8 disturbances. There were 3 unattended fires, 3 boating violations including an 
unauthorized kayak and an aluminum vessel on the lake. Both violations were handled by Park 
Rangers. Also in October a report of possible attempt to lure children into an isolated area of 
the park was reported to Park Rangers. Park Rangers conducted an investigation and search. 
No suspects or evidence of a crime was found.     

 
Revenue Reporting  
 The 2018/2019 unaudited monthly revenue 
figures will be reported when made available in the 
respective months (operations, concessions, Water 
Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary 
generated by the Finance Manager. To date July and 
August, 2018 are available.   

 
 

 

 

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00
$900,000.00

Ju
ly

Septe
m

ber

Nove
m

ber

Ja
nuary

M
arc

h
M

ay

FY 18/19

FY 17/18



 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  MIKE FLOOD, INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  JULIA ARANDA, ENGINEERING MANAGER 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY ENGINEERING STATUS REPORT 

DATE:  11/14/2018 
 

Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors receive and file the Monthly Engineering Status 
Report for November 2018. 
 
Discussion: 
 
The attached chart shows the status of engineering projects for November 2018. Significant 
activities include: 
 

• Request for Qualifications/Proposal for the Comprehensive Water Resources Plan was 
re-issued 10/26/18. A non-mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held 11/8/18 at which 
five firms were represented. Proposals are due 12/07/18 and award of a contract is 
tentatively scheduled for 01/23/19. 

 
• Request for Proposals for State Water Project Interconnection Phase 3 will be released 

12/10/18. 
 

• Request for Proposal for Robles Diversion Fish Screens Alternatives Feasibility Study 
was issued 11/6/18 to two of the on-call engineering firms with fish passage expertise. 
Letter proposals due 11/20/18.  
 

• Contract authorized to Water Systems Consulting, Inc. for Casitas System Hydraulic 
Model. 

 
• Ojai Water System Condition-Based Assessment and Master Plan is complete. 

 
• La Conchita Water System Improvements construction is complete. 

 
• Robles Dam Timber Cutoff Wall Repairs are pending environmental permits. 

 
• Old Creek Road Pipeline Relocation is complete. 

 
• Robles Diversion Canal Maintenance is under construction and expected to be complete 

early January. 
 

Attachment: Engineering Project Status November 2018 



NOT YET STARTED CONSULTANT SELECTION PLANNING DESIGN BIDDING CONSTRUCTION

Reservoir Roads

Maintain Casitas Dam and
WTP Roads

Emergency Generators
Rincon, Avenue 1, and Avenue 2

Pump Plants

Emily Street Pipeline

Rice Road Bridge
Replacement

SWP Interconnection
Phase 3

Ayers Creek Pipeline
Relocation

Robles Diversion Fish
Screen Alternatives

Feasibility Study

Comprehensive Water
Resources Plan

De La Garrigue Bridge
Replacement

Ojai Water System
Master Plan

Signal Booster Zone
Hydraulic Improvements

Casitas-Ojai System
Interties

Camp Cha�ee Pipeline
Replacement

Reservoir and Vault Fall
Protection Improvements

Arc Flash Study

Matilija Vertical Well

Ojai East Reservoir
Recoating

Solimar Beach Corrosion
Investigation

Playground Resurfacing

Diesel Tank Pad 
Design

Road Improvements

Annual Electrical
 Maintenance Contract

Boat Inspection 
Awning

Casitas Dam Hollow
Jet Valve Replacement

Running Ridge Zone
Hydraulic Improvements

Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration

Well
Rehabilitation/Replacement

Upper Rincon Lateral
Replacement

Rincon Pump Plant 
Electrical Upgrade

Robles Diversion Canal
Maintenance

Awning for San Antonio
Pump Plant

 

FY18-19 Asphalt Paving

La Conchita Water System
Improvements

Timber Cuto� Wall
 Repair

Old Creek Road Pipeline 
Relocation

Engineering Project Status November 2018
Casitas Water System

Ojai Water System
Lake Casitas Recreation Area

25% 50% 75% 100%

Vegetation ManagementBackwash-Vault Water
Alternatives

Emergency Exit Road

Sunset Place
Pipeline

Cuyama, Palomar, El Paseo 
Pipeline

South San Antonio and
Crestview Pipeline

West and East Ojai Avenue
Pipeline

Grand Avenue Pipeline
Optimization

Mutual Well Field
Pipeline

Valve and Appurtenance
Replacement (Ventura St)



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2018-2019 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2018 / 2019 2017 / 2018

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 442 411 332 1,185 1,437

AG Ag 341 290 229 859 1,025

C Commercial 119 118 103 340 313

DI Interdepartmental 40 25 9 74 28

F fire 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 2 1 1 4 4

OT Other 26 23 23 73 88

R Residential 261 260 244 765 580

RS - P Resale Pumped 113 115 109 336 148

RS - G Resale Gravity 341 250 199 790 521

TE Temporary 2 2 2 6 5

Total 1,686 1,495 1,251 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,433 4,148

CMWD 1,512 1,320 1,084

OJAI 174 175 167

Total 2017 / 2018 1,355 1,185 1,608 1,628 1,026 1,085 592 898 384 815 1,078 1,200 N/A 12,853

dcollin Page 1 11/7/2018



CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Cost Analysis 

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 0.00 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,658.37

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

2014 / 2015 0.00 68,457.10 0.00 0.00 68,457.10

2015 / 2016 6.12 152,811.84 2,938.86 0.00 155,756.82

2016 / 2017 110.54 352,965.75 48,725.29 0.00 401,801.58
2017 / 2018 0.00 13,426.72 14,154.45 0.00 27,581.17

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 755.63 7,988.09 377.82 0.00 9,121.54

September 450.60 669.50 288.07 0.00 1,408.17

October 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

November 0.00

December 0.00

January 0.00

Feburary 0.00

March 0.00

April 0.00

May 0.00

June 0.00

Total YTD Cost 1,206.23 8,657.59 665.89 0.00 10,529.71

Total Cost 2,184.60 954,219.83 96,255.19 0.00 1,052,659.62

Less: Scanned Document Revenue 2012 / 2013 -289.50

Less: Tax Assessment - County of Ventura: 2015 / 2016 -460,342.64

Less: Tax Assessment - County of Ventura: 2016 / 2017 -464,386.26

Less: Bond Pre-Payments -92,470.36

Less: Reimbursable District Staff Cost Bond Pre-payment -36,000.00

Total CMWD CFD 2013-1 Cost -539.64

Prepared by dcollin 11/7/2018 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

11/07/18

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Farmer MAC 31315PYF0 5/2/2028 $511,351 $474,205 2.925% 11/20/2017 2.41% 3415

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGZW8 10/25/2024 $833,918 $779,144 2.014% 10/25/2016 3.96% 2148

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $887,643 $806,263 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.10% 2676

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $851,343 $794,682 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.04% 2642

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,012,667 $937,250 3.000% 3/24/2016 4.76% 2971

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGWD 9/29/2027 $694,629 $616,664 2.354% 11/17/2016 3.13% 3202

*TB Farmer MAC 3133EEPH7 2/12/2029 $480,083 $440,381 2.710% 11/20/2017 2.24% 3695

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A3DL 9/8/2023 $1,562,022 $1,449,045 1.486% 10/13/2016 7.36% 1741

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,354,044 $1,342,103 1.625% 10/3/2012 6.82% 217

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN 12/10/2021 $526,791 $497,185 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.53% 1113

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $757,722 $695,173 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.53% 2376

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $457,223 $418,515 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.13% 1741

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5VW6 7/10/2025 $1,020,876 $965,840 2.360% 5/10/2017 4.91% 2403

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130AIXJ2 6/14/2024 $914,520 $831,058 2.875% 8/2/2016 4.22% 2017

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130ADNW8 2/14/2020 $998,230 $962,240 3.400% 1/16/2013 4.89% 457

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF 6/11/2021 $618,934 $595,560 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.03% 934

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB 1/13/2022 $672,138 $650,255 1.721% 5/1/2016 3.30% 1146

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $784,651 $727,262 2.625% 5/25/2016 3.70% 1974

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR 9/6/2024 $1,461,895 $1,352,132 2.125% 5/25/2016 6.87% 2099

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K3 4/24/2026 $2,525,391 $2,305,825 1.375% 7/6/2010 11.72% 2687

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF 1/15/2020 $1,170,515 $1,168,149 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.94% 428

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE 11/15/2023 $767,720 $754,841 2.750% 12/13/2013 3.84% 1808

Accrued Interest $114,781

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $20,864,308 $19,678,551 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $459 $459 2.16% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,914 $2,914 1.71% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $20,867,680 $19,681,923 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $20,874,942 $19,770,015

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $21,125,837 $20,786,427

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $3,174,011 $3,174,011

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $1 $1 0.19%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $24,041,693 $22,855,936

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $21,591,891 $21,252,482

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	11-14-18 Agenda
	10-24-18 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	October 24, 2018

	Board Memo to Set a Hearing to Consider a Stage 4 Water Condition Declaration 111418
	MEMORANDUM

	Reso public hearing Stage 4 Declaration
	Board Memo WSA with Meiners Oaks WD 111418
	MEMORANDUM

	Meiners Oaks MOU 102918 (1)
	BoardMemo_ContractorPreQualification_Rincon_11_18
	RECOMMENDATION:
	In 1999 the California State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 574 authorizing cities, counties, and special districts the ability to pre-qualify construction contractors for specific projects or for a specific duration. Public Contracts Code Section 2...

	Rincon PP_ContractorRFQ_v1 (1)
	Accept WSC Proposal_Board Memo_20181114
	Ojai_System_Executive_Summary
	Casitas MOjai Part_1
	Casitas MOjai Part 2

	Accept WSC Proposal_Board Memo_20181114
	WSC_Casitas Hydraulic Model_CMWD
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Cover Letter
	Project Understanding
	Scope of Work
	Project Schedule
	Project Team
	Firm's Experience
	Conflicts & Additional Comments
	Acceptance of Contract
	Resumes

	BoardMemo_20181114 Pueblo
	RECOMMENDATION:

	18-0141 engr_ops support pueblo 102518
	18-0141 engr_ops support for gw projects proposal 102518
	2018 PWR Standard Fee Schedule

	1810 October 2018
	Water Resources Minutes 102318
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  Interim General Manager, Michael Flood
	Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of October 23, 2018, at 1000 hours.
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Rec Minutes11.8.2018
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  Park Services Manager, Carol Belser
	Re:    Recreation Committee Meeting of November 8, at 1000 hours.
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file the minutes of the November 2018 Recreation Committee.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Exec Minutes 110918
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  Interim General Manager, Michael Flood
	Re:    Executive Committee Meeting of November 9, 2018, at 1000 hours.
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	LCRA09.September10.Oct.2018
	Eng Status Report BoardMemo201811
	Recommendation:

	Engineering monthly report Nov_2018_8x11
	Consumption 2018 - 2019
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2018-2019
	Investment Report 11-07-18



